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PART |
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements within the meaning of the Pri&geurities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Words such as "plan," "expect,” "aim," "bedi¢ "project,” "intend,” "estimate," "will," "shdd," "could,"” and other terms of similar
meaning typically identify forward-looking statentenThe forward-looking statements in this reppdude, without limitation, the anticipated
opportunity for growth in sales of cardio produgins to continue to be a large direct marketestrgingth products; potential continuance of
or improvement in consumer credit financing approates; the continuance of certain advertisingtsggies and the impact of such programs
on product sales; our new product developmentegiias; expectations for increased research andagewent expenses and our plans and
expectations regarding borrowing agreements. Fahlaoking statements also include any statemetasekto our expectations regarding
future business and financial performance or canh{ anticipated sales growth across marketgjlaligion channels and product categories,
expenses and gross margins, profits or lossegddezm discontinued operation, settlements of avdyr obligations, new product
introductions, financing and working capital regumirents and resources. These forward-looking staesiend others we make from time-to-
time, are subject to a number of risks and uncgrés. Many factors could cause actual resultsfferdnaterially from those projected in
forward-looking statements, including the risksatdeed in Part |, ltem 1A of this report. We do mwidertake any duty to update forward-
looking statements after the date they are madermfiorm them to actual results or to changes ituoistances or expectations.

Iltem 1. Business

Unless the context otherwise requires, “Nautild€dmpany,” “we,” “us,” and “our’refer to Nautilus, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Alfarences 1
2012, 2011 and 2010 in this report refer to osedl years ended on December 31, 2012 , 2011 dlitl, 2@spectively.

OVERVIEW

Founded in 1986, Nautilus is a consumer fitnesdyets company headquartered in Vancouver, Washiraytd incorporated in the State of
Washington in January 1993. We are committed toigiog innovative, quality solutions to help peoplehieve a fit and healthy lifestyle. Our
principal business activities include designingadeping, sourcing and marketing high-quality cardind strength fithess products and relatec
accessories for consumer use, primarily in theadh@itates and Canada. Our products are sold uoiher af the most-recognized brand name:
in the fitness industry: Nautilifs Bowflex®, Schwinn®, Schwinn Fitness™ and Universal

We market our products through two distinct disttibn channels, Direct and Retail, which we constdébe separate business segments. Ou
Direct business offers products directly to consumersauiifindelevision advertising, catalogs and the Irger®urRetailbusiness offers our
products through a network of independent retaihganies with stores and websites located in théedrtates and internationally. We also
derive a portion of our revenue from the licensdfigur brands and intellectual property.

During the third quarter of 2009, we committed tolan for the complete divestiture of our Commdrbissiness with the expectation that the
plan's successful completion would improve our all@perating results. Our former Commercial busineow classified as a discontinued
operation, offered products to health clubs, schdwbspitals and other organizations. We complitedlisposal of the assets held for sale of
our former Commercial business in April 2011 andswbstantially completed the liquidation of ouréstment in foreign subsidiaries relate
the discontinued operation in the fourth quarte2@f2.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

We are focused on developing and marketing constitness equipment and related products to helpleesnjoy healthier lives. Our produ
are targeted to meet the needs of a broad rangensfimers, including fitness enthusiasts and iddals who are seeking the benefits of
regular exercise. We have diversified our busitgssxpanding our portfolio of high-quality fitheeguipment into multiple product lines
utilizing our well-recognized brand names. Our hask strategy focuses exclusively on consumer ptedmarkets and distribution channels.

Our strategies incorporate the individual charasties of our Direct and Retail businesses. Oueflibusiness focuses on (i) the development
of, or acquisition of rights to, unique product§); the application of creative, cost-effective weap communicate the benefits of their use; and
(iii) making various payment options available to gustomers. We are particularly
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attentive to Direct business metrics that proviekdback regarding the effectiveness of our medi&etiag programs and attractiveness of
third-party consumer financing programs.

In our Retail business, we strive to develop loawgrt relationships with key retailers of sportsitiréss equipment. The primary objectives of
our Retail business are (i) to offer a selectiopraiducts at key price-points; and (ii) to utilihee strength of our brands and long-standing
customer relationships to secure more floor spatteaur Retail customers for our products.

Our long-term strategy involves:
« creatively marketing our equipment, both dingétl consumers and through our Retail customergewdveraging our well-known
brand names;
« enhancing our product lines by designing fitheaspgent that meets or exceeds the high expectatibosr customer
« utilizing our strengths in product engineeringeduice product cos
e continuing our investment in research and develapraetivities aimed at acquiring or creating neehtelogies
* increasing our international Retail sales and ithistion; anc
» increasing royalty revenues from the licensinguf lrands and intellectual prope

PRODUCTS

We market quality cardiovascular and strength §isngroducts that cover a broad range of price paindl features. Our products are designed
for home use by individuals with varying exercigzds. From the person who works out occasionalijeserious athlete, we have products
that will help them achieve their fitness objective

* OurNautilus brand includes a complete line of cardio equipmiectuding treadmills, specialized cardio, exerdifes and
ellipticals.

» OurBowflex brand represents a highly-regarded line of fitreegipment comprised of both cardio and strengtdyeets, including
TreadClimbef specialized cardio machines, treadmills, PowerRaad Revolutiorf home gyms, and SelectTettumbbells.

»  OurSchwinnbrand is known for its popular line of exercisedsikincluding the Airdyng, ellipticals and treadmill

» OurUniversal brand, one of the oldest and most recognized namtés fitness industry, currently offers a linekettlebell weights
and weight benches.

While we offer our full product assortment to ourdat customers through our Internet websites andcatalogs, we generally differentiate the
product models offered in our Direct and Retaiesathannels. Currently, our Bowflex TreadClimberdurct line is offered for sale primarily
through our Direct sales channel.

Approximately 71% of our revenue in 2012 was datifrem sales of consumer cardio products. Whilecargtinue to be a leader in the
consumer strength product category, we believentineh larger market for cardio products offers wsatgr opportunity for growth.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We conduct our business in two segments, DirectRaetdil. For further information, see Note 14, Segtrinformation, to our consolidated
financial statements in Part Il, Item 8 of thisogp

SALES AND MARKETING
Direct

In our Direct business, we market and sell our petsl principally Bowflex cardio and strength prothy directly to consumers. While we are,
and plan to continue to be, a large direct markaftstrength products in the United States, ouedibing emphasis has shifted toward cardio
products, especially the Bowflex TreadClimber, asio products represent the largest componemteofitness equipment market and a
growing part of our business. Sales of cardio petaltepresented 81% of our Direct channel revemu2812, compared to 71% in 2011 and
56% in 2010.
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Our marketing efforts are based on an integratatbomation of media and direct consumer contacaddition to television advertising, which
ranges in length from 30 seconds to as long agfiiveites, we utilize extended 30-minute televididomercials, Internet advertising, product
websites, inquiry-response mailings, catalogs abdund/outbound call centers. Marketing and meffiictiveness is measured continuously
based on sales inquiries generated, cost-per-deadersion rates, return on investment and othgopeance metrics. Almost all of our Direct
customer orders are received either on our Intemeésites or through company-owned and third-peatlycenters.

In September 2010, we completed our transitionrieva consumer credit program with a new primargdtiparty financing provider, GE
Capital Retail Bank, formerly GE Money Bank ("GEThe relationship with GE has expanded the abilfityur customers to obtain third-party
consumer financing for purchases of our productsiddition, we added one secondary third-party wores credit financing provider during
the third quarter of 2010 and another in early 2@bth of which offer credit to certain qualifiedresumers whose credit applications have |
declined by GE. As a result, combined consumeritaggbrovals by our primary and secondary U.Sdtparty financing providers increasec
32% in 2012 from 25% in 2011 and 15% in 2010.

Retail

In our Retail business, we market and sell a cohgrsive line of consumer fitness equipment undeNautilus, Schwinn, Universal and
Bowflex brands. Our products are marketed throughbtevork of retail companies, consisting of spatijpods stores, Internet retailers, large-
format and warehouse stores, and, to a lessertestaaller specialty retailers and independent dialers.

We offer programs that provide price discountsupRetail customers for ordering container-sizagrslents or placing orders early enough in
the season to allow for more efficient manufaciyitiy our Asian suppliers. These programs are dedigmreduce our shipping and handling
costs, with much of the savings being passed ouit@ustomers. In addition, our Retail customersegally are eligible for other types of sales
incentives, including volume discounts and varifarss of rebates or allowances, which generallyirstended to increase product exposure
and availability for consumers, reduce transpartatiosts, and encourage marketing and promoti@uobrands or specific products.

PRODUCT DESIGN AND INNOVATION

Innovation is a vital part of our business, andosatinue to expand and diversify our product offgs by leveraging our research and
development capabilities. We constantly searciméw technologies and innovations that will helgtmwv our business, either through higher
sales or increased production efficiencies. To angdish this objective, we seek out ideas and caisdeqth within our company and from
outside inventors.

We rely on financial and engineering models tosdsss in assessing the potential operational aodaic impacts of adopting new
technologies and innovations. If we determine ¢httird-party technology or innovation concept reasrtain technical and financial criteria,
we may enter into a licensing arrangement to etitiee technology or, in certain circumstances, lpage the technology for our own use. Our
product design and engineering teams also investiderable effort to improve product design andiuaAs a consumer-driven company, we
invest from time-to-time in qualitative and quaatite consumer research to help us assess newgbrazhcepts, optimal features and
anticipated consumer adoption.

Our research and development expenses were $4i@mi$3.2 million and $2.9 million in 2012 , 20&hd 2010 , respectively, as we
increased our investment in new product developmestturces and capabilities. We expect our researglievelopment expenses to increast
in 2013 as we continue to increase our investnrenew product development.

SEASONALITY

We expect our sales to vary seasonally. Saleypieatly strongest in the first and fourth quartdadlowed by the third quarter, and are
generally weakest in the second quarter. We betteatevarious factors, such as the broadcast efarktseason finales and seasonal weather
patterns, influence television viewers and causeaduertising on cable television stations to tss leffective in the second quarter than in c
periods. In addition, during the spring and summenths, consumers tend to be involved in outdotivities, including outdoor exercise,
which impacts sales of indoor fithess equipments Eeasonality can have a significant effect onimuentory levels, working capital needs
resource utilization.
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MERCHANDISE SOURCING

All of our products are produced by third-party mtacturers, most of whom are the sole source fdiqudar products and substantially all of
whom are located in Asia. Lead times for inventouychases from our Asian suppliers, from ordergiaent to receipt of goods, generally
range from approximately two to three months, ofolhiransit time represents three-to-four week® Bimgth of our lead times requires us to
place advance manufacturing orders based on maragdonecasts of future demand for our products.aftempt to compensate for our long
replenishment lead times by maintaining adequateldeof inventory at our warehousing facilities.

We monitor our suppliers' ability to meet our protlneeds and we participate in quality assurantieities to reinforce adherence to our
quality standards. Our third-party manufacturingteacts are generally of annual or shorter dunatio manufactured products are sourced or
the basis of individual purchase orders. Our mactufing relationships are non-exclusive, and veeparmitted to procure our products from
other sources at our discretion. None of our maetufing contracts include production volume orchasse commitments on the part of either
party. Our third-party manufacturers are respdaditr the sourcing of raw materials.

LOGISTICS

Our warehousing and distribution facilities aredisd in Portland, Oregon and Winnipeg, ManitobaunDirect business, we strive to
maintain inventory levels that will allow us to plaur products shortly after receiving a customentier. We use common carriers for
substantially all of our merchandise shipments ite® customers.

In our Retail business, we manage our inventorglieio accommodate anticipated seasonal changksriand. Generally, we maintain higher
inventory levels at the end of the third and fourtfarters to satisfy relatively higher consumer dedin the fourth and first quarters of each
year. Many of our Retail customers place orders iweldvance of peak periods of consumer demamshsore an adequate supply for
anticipated selling season. We use various comatdraick lines for our merchandise shipments taRetistomers.

In 2012 approximately 40% of our Retail inventoeplenishment orders were shipped by our contraoufaaturers in Asia directly to our
Retail customer locations, typically in containeads. The use of such direct shipments allows usaiatain lower levels of inventory in our
warehouses, resulting in lower storage, handlirgight, insurance and other costs.

COMPETITION

The markets for all of our products are highly cetitpve. We believe the principal competitive fast@ffecting our business are quality, branc
recognition, innovation and pricing. We believe ave well-positioned to compete in markets in whichcan take advantage of our strong
brand names.

Our products compete directly with those offerecaligrge number of companies that market consutmest equipment and fitness programs
As the use of Internet websites for product sajesdtlitional retailers has increased, our competihave become increasingly similar across
our Direct and Retail sales channels. Our prinaipahpetitors include: Fitness Questarketer of Total Fitnes$-branded products; ICON
Health & Fitness, marketer of ProFoftmand NordicTrack -branded products; Johnson Health Tech, marketeiodzon® -branded products;
Beach Body, marketer of the P90Xtness program; and American Telecast, marketdiotél Gym®-branded products. Among our other
competitors are marketers of computer- based palyaativity products, such as the Nintendo P\ind Microsoft XboxX® Kinect®, and weight
management companies, such as Weight Watcherspéadfich offers alternative solutions for a fitcahealthy lifestyle.

EMPLOYEES

As of February 28, 2013, we had approximately 3tleyees, substantially all of whom were full-tinone of our employees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. We have not éspeed a material interruption of our operations ttulabor disputes.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Trademarks, patents and other forms of intelleqioaperty are vital to the success of our busia@skare an essential factor in maintaining ou
competitive position in the health and fitness stdy
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Trademarks

We own many trademarks including NautifusBowflex®, PowerRod®, Revolution®, TreadClimbef, SelectTecl?, Trimline®, Airdyne®,
CoreBody Reforme and UniversaP . Nautilus is the exclusive licensee under the ngafhwinn® for indoor fitness products. We believe that
having distinctive trademarks that are readily td&ble by consumers is an important factor inatieg a market for our products, maintaining
a strong company identity and developing brandltgyamong our customers. In addition, we have gratitenses to certain third-parties to
use the Nautilus, Schwinn and TreadClimber tradessaom commercial fitness products, for which weireeroyalty income and expanded
consumer awareness of our brands.

Each federally registered trademark is renewaldefinitely if the trademark is still in use at ttime of renewal. We are not aware of any
material claims of infringement or other challengesur trademark rights in our major markets.

Patents

Building our intellectual property portfolio is @mportant factor in maintaining our competitive fims in the health and fithess equipment
industry. We have followed a policy of filing apgditions for U.S. and non-U.S. patents on utilitd design inventions that we deem valuable
to our business.

We maintain a portfolio of patents related to oomlBlex® TreadClimber® specialized cardio machiriHse portfolio is comprised of
approximatel y 24 i ssued U.S. patents coveringpuarproduct features and other technologies assativith our TreadClimber® products.
Expiration dates for individual patents within tipisrtfolio range from 2013 to 2025.

Additionally, we own or license patents coveringagiety of technologies, some of which are utilize@ur variable stride ellipticals,
selectorized dumbbells and recumbent exercise bikastilus is also the exclusive licensee of patéimat cover the Bowflex Revolution home
gyms. Patent protection for these technologiesnelstas far as 2020.

We protect our proprietary rights vigorously ankiet@rompt, reasonable actions to prevent countgrfeducts and other infringement on our
intellectual property. Expiration or invalidity tfiese or other patents could trigger the introductf similar products by our competitors.

BACKLOG

Historically, our backlog has not been a significiactor in our business. Our customer order bagkk of December 31, 2012 and 2011 was
approximately $0.1 million and $0.6 million, respeely.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

In 2012 and 2011, Amazon.com accounted for mone Hflepercent, but less than 15 percent, of ouralmzged net sales. No individual
customer accounted for 10 percent or more of onsaldated net sales in 2010.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND OTHER REGULATORY MATTERS

Our operations are subject to various laws andiatigns both domestically and abroad. In the UnBéates, federal, state and local regulation
impose standards on our workplace and our reldtipnsith the environment. For example, the U.S.iEonmental Protection Agency,
Occupational Safety and Health Administration atitepfederal agencies have the authority to proatalgegulations that may impact our
operations. In particular, we are subject to legish placing restrictions on our generation, eiisstreatment, storage and disposal of
materials, substances and wastes. Such legisiattardes: the Toxic Substances Control Act; thedRese Conservation and Recovery Act;
Clean Air Act; the Clean Water Act; the Safe DrimkiWater Act; and the Comprehensive Environmengsigense and the Compensation and
Liability Act (also known as Superfund). We arecadsibject to the requirements of the Consumer Rtd8afety Commission and the Federal
Trade Commission, in addition to regulations conitgy employee health and safety matters.

Our operations and certain disposed componentardbomer Commercial business expose us to clagiaged to environmental matters.
Although compliance with federal, state, local amernational environmental legislation has not hadaterial adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations in the pastrdhtman be no assurance that material costs olitiebwill not be incurred in connection with
such environmental matters in the future.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stocklange and trades under the symbol “NLS.” Our [jpadexecutive offices are located at
17750 SE 6th Way, Vancouver, Washington 98683 camdelephone number is (360) 859-2900. The Inteaddress of our corporate website
is http://www.nautilusinc.com.

We file annual reports, quarterly reports, curremorts, proxy statements and other informatiom wie Securities and Exchange Commissior
(the “SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act d34,%s amended. You can inspect and obtain a dopyr@eports, proxy statements and
other information filed with the SEC at the officafsthe SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Sidet Washington, D.C. 20549, on
official business days during the hours of 10 a8 p.m. EST. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SE®-@&3further information on the Public
Reference Room. The SEC maintains an Internet weelshttp://www.sec.gov where you can access sagienost of our SEC filings.

We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quartegprts on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form & amendments to those reports,
available free of charge on our corporate webbitaddition, our Code of Business Conduct and [Ettgorporate governance policies, and the
charters of our Audit Committee, Compensation Cottemiand Nominating and Corporate Governance Caeerétre available on our
corporate website. The information presented orcoyporate website is not part of this report.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Nautilus operates in an environment that involvesimber of risks and uncertainties. The risks amzkrtainties described in this Annt
Report on Form 10-K are not the only risks and uadties that we face. Additional risks and unamties that presently are not considered
material or are not known to us, and thereforenatementioned herein, may impair our business djpara If any of the risks described in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K actually occur, our bess, operating results and financial positionddel adversely affected.

Our revenues and profitability can fluctuate from period to period and are often difficult to predict due to factors beyond our control.

Our results of operations in any particular perioay not be indicative of results to be expecteftifure periods, and have historically been,
are expected to continue to be, subject to perithadtuations arising from a number of factors lirting:
» Introduction and market acceptance of new prodartssales trends affecting specific existing prosl
* Variations in product selling prices and costs tiredmix of products sol
» Size and timing of Retail customer orders, whiaturn, often depend upon the success of oupmers' businesses or
specific products;
e Changes in the market conditions for consumer $gregquipmen
e Changes in macroeconomic fact
e Availability of consumer cred
« Timing and availability of products coming from aaffshore contract manufacturing suppli
» Seasonality of markets, which vary from quatteguarter and are influenced by outside factoch s overall consumer
confidence and the availability and cost of tel@risadvertising time;
» Effectiveness of our media and advertising progr
» Customer consolidation in our Retail segment, ertthnkruptcy of any of our larger Retail custon
* Restructuring charge
» Goodwill and other intangible asset impairment gkar an
» Legal and contract settlement char

These trends and factors could adversely affecbosiness, operating results, financial positioth eash flows in any particular period.
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Intense competition or loss of one or more of oualge Retail customers could negatively impact ourades and operating results.

Our products are sold in highly competitive markeith limited barriers to entry. As a result, irdiaction by competitors of lower-priced or
more innovative products could result in a sigwificdecline in our revenues and have a materiadradweffect on our operating results,
financial position and cash flows.

Additionally, we derive a significant portion of orevenue from a small number of Retail customgrass of business from one or more of
these large customers, if not replaced with nevingss, could negatively affect our operating resaitd cash flow.

A decline in sales of TreadClimber products withouta corresponding increase in sales of other produstvould negatively affect our
future revenues and operating results.

Sales of cardio products, especially Bowflex® T@lhmber® products, represent a substantial pomioour Direct segment revenues.
Introduction by competitors of comparable prodwttiower price-points, a maturing product lifecyoteother factors could result in a decline
in our revenues derived from these products. Aiiggmt decline in our sales of these products Wddve a material adverse effect on our
operating results, financial position and cash fiow

Portions of our operating expenses and costs of gigsold are relatively fixed, and we may have liméd ability to reduce expenses
sufficiently in response to any revenue shortfalls.

Many of our operating expenses are relatively fix&& may not be able to adjust our operating exg®os other costs sufficiently to
adequately respond to any revenue shortfalls. lakeeunable to reduce operating expenses or otisés quickly in response to any declines in
revenue, it would negatively impact our operatiegults, financial condition and cash flows.

If we are unable to anticipate consumer preferencesr to effectively develop, market and sell futurgoroducts, our future revenues and
operating results could be adversely affected.

Our future success depends on our ability to affelst develop, market and sell new products thapoad to new and evolving consumer
preferences. Accordingly, our revenues and opegaaults may be adversely affected if we are untbtlevelop or acquire rights to new
products that satisfy consumer preferences. Irtiad¢iany new products that we market may not geeesufficient revenues to recoup their
acquisition, development, production, marketindjirepand other costs.

Further decline or weaker than expected recovery itonsumer spending likely would negatively affectwr product revenues and
earnings.

Success of each of our products depends substaitiathe amount of discretionary funds availabl®tr customers. Global credit and
financial markets have experienced extreme digsaptin the recent past, including severely dimiadshquidity and credit availability,
declines in consumer confidence, declines in ecanignowth, increases in unemployment rates andrteiogdy about economic stability. The
can be no assurance that there will not be fudbéerioration in these conditions. Further dectingveaker than expected recovery in general
economic conditions could further depress conswepending, especially spending for discretionaryscomer products such as ours. Poor
economic conditions could in turn lead to substdmtecreases in our net sales or have a matexalrsal effect on our operating results,
financial position and cash flows.

Our business is affected by seasonality which regslin fluctuations in our operating results.

We experience moderate fluctuations in aggregdés salume during the year. Sales are typicallgrsiest in the first and fourth quarters,
followed by the third quarter, and are generalhalest in the second quarter. However, the mix oflpct sales may vary considerably from
time to time as a result of changes in seasonagandraphic demand for particular types of fitregsipment. In addition, our customers may
cancel orders, change delivery schedules or chitwegenix of products ordered with minimal notice. &sesult, we may not be able to
accurately predict our quarterly sales. Accordinglyr results of operations are likely to fluctusignificantly from period to period.
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Government regulatory actions could disrupt our maketing efforts and product sales.

Various international and U.S. federal, state amdllgovernmental authorities, including the Feldérade Commission, the Consumer Proc
Safety Commission, the Securities and Exchange dssion and the Consumer Financial Protection Buresgulate our product and
marketing efforts. Our sales and profitability abble significantly harmed if any of these authesttommence a regulatory enforcement a
that interrupts our marketing efforts, results ipraduct recall or negative publicity, or requickgnges in product design.

Substantially higher advertising rates or a signiftant decline in availability of media time may hiner our ability to effectively market
our products and may reduce profitability.

We depend on television advertising to market aegeoducts sold directly to consumers. Consegyeatiarked increase in the price we r
pay for our preferred media time and/or a reduditioits availability may adversely impact our fircda performance.

We may be unable to adapt to significant changes imedia consumption habits, which could diminish thesffectiveness or efficiency of
our advertising.

New television technologies and services, suchidex-on-demand, digital video recorders and Intermeiashing services are changing
traditional patterns of television viewing. Additially, consumer attention is increasingly fragmdraeross a variety of games, apps, the
Internet and other digital media. If we are unablsuccessfully adapt our media strategies to eévision viewing and media consumption
habits, the effectiveness and efficiency of our imgdacements could be adversely affected, aneperating results may be harmed.

Our revenues could decline due to changes in creditarkets and decisions made by credit providers.

Historically, a significant portion of our Direcales have been financed for our customers und@usaprograms offered by third-party
consumer credit financing sources. Reductions insamer lending and the availability of consumeditreould limit the number of customers
with the financial means to purchase our produdigher interest rates could increase monthly paysfar consumer products financed
through one of our monthly payment plans or throatifer sources of consumer financing. In the pesthave partnered with financial service
companies to assist our customers in obtainingéimg to purchase our products. Our present agnetsmagth our third party consumer credit
financing providers enable certain customers taiolfinancing if they qualify for the provider'siyaite label revolving credit card. We cannot
be assured that our third party financing provideitscontinue to provide consumers with accessraalit or that credit limits under such
arrangements will not be reduced. Such restrictneductions in the availability of consumer é¢teduld have a material adverse impact on
our results of operations, financial position aadicflows.

If our contract manufacturers experience any delaygdisruption or quality control problems in their operations, we could lose revenues,
and our reputation and market share may be harmed.

We have outsourced the production of all of oudpias to third-party manufacturers. We rely on cumtract manufacturers to procure
components and provide spare parts in supportofvatranty and customer service obligations. Weegaly commit the manufacturing of
each product to a single contract manufacturer.

Our reliance on contract manufacturers exposes tigetfollowing risks over which we may have linditeontrol:
* Unexpected increases in manufacturing and repats
» Interruptions in shipments if our contract manufiaet is unable to complete producti
» Inability to completely control the quality of fisthed product
» Inability to completely control delivery schedul
e Changes in our contract manufacturer's busines&lnod operation
» Potential increases in our negotiated product astsresult of fluctuations in currency excharages
« Impact of the global market and economic condiion the financial stability of our contract meamturers and their ability
to operate without requesting earlier payment tesnistters of credit;
» Potential lack of adequate capacity to manufaclirer a part of the products we require;
» Potential unauthorized reproduction or counterigitof our product

Substantially all of our contract manufacturerslacated in Asia, primarily China, and may be sabje disruption by natural disasters, as \
as political, social or economic instability. Tteertporary or permanent loss of the services of &iyo
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primary contract manufacturers could cause a sagmif disruption in our product supply chain anémions and delays in product shipments

Our third-party manufacturing contracts are gemgflannual or shorter duration, or manufactureatipcts are sourced on the basis of
individual purchase orders. There is no assurdratente will be able to maintain our current relasibips with these parties or, if necessary,
establish future arrangements with other thirdyparanufacturers on commercially reasonable termghEr, we cannot assure that their
manufacturing and quality control processes wilhimntained at a level sufficient to meet our irteey needs or prevent the inadvertent sa
substandard products. While we believe that pradoeinufactured by our current third-party manufegsicould generally be procured from
alternative sources, temporary or permanent losgmwices from a significant manufacturer couldseadisruption in our supply chain and
operations.

Our inventory purchases are subject to long lead thes, which could negatively impact our sales, cadlows and liquidity.

All of our products are produced by third-party mtacturers, substantially all of which are locaitedsia, primarily China. Lead times for
inventory purchases from our Asian suppliers, famaer placement to receipt of goods, generally egngm approximately two to three
months, of which transit time represents threestar-fveeks. The length of our lead times require®ysdace advance manufacturing orders
based on management forecasts of future demarmaifgroducts. Due to the length of our lead tinoes,sales and cash flows may be
negatively impacted if we do not have sufficientdntory on hand to meet customer demand for seahsit In addition, our liquidity and cash
flows may be negatively affected, and inventoryabdscence may increase, if the quantity of prodwet®rder exceeds customer demand for
such items.

A delay in getting non-U.S.-sourced products throulg port operations and customs in a timely manner add result in reduced sales,
canceled sales orders and unanticipated inventorycaumulation.

Most of our imported products are subject to dubietriffs that affect the cost and quantity ofiwas types of goods imported into the U.S. or
our other markets. The countries in which our potslare produced or sold may adjust or impose nemeg, duties, tariffs or other
restrictions. Further, our business depends ormbility to source and distribute products in a tymaanner. As a result, we rely on the free
flow of goods through open and operational portsldvaide. Labor disputes at various ports createificant risks for our business, particule

if these disputes result in work slowdowns, lockostrikes or other disruptions during our peakartipg seasons. Any of these factors could
result in reduced sales, canceled sales ordergraartticipated inventory accumulation and have aeriatadverse effect on our operating
results, financial position and cash flows.

Unpredictable events and circumstances relating tour international operations, including our use ofnon-U.S. manufacturers, could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

Substantially all of our products are manufactwetside of the U.S. and a portion of our revenuteisved from sales outside the U.S.,
primarily in Canada. Accordingly, our future resutbuld be materially adversely affected by a ward factors pertaining to international
trade, including: changes in a specific country'segion’'s political or economic conditions; tradstrictions; import and export licensing
requirements; changes in regulatory requiremenitianal efforts to comply with a variety of foggi laws and regulations; and longer
payment cycles in certain countries, thus requitiadgo finance customer purchases over a longé&dtran those made in the U.S. In addit
we rely on the performance of our employees locatddreign countries. Our ability to control thetians of these employees may be limited
by the laws and regulations in effect in each cgur@hanges in any of the above factors could lzeneterial adverse effect on our operating
results, financial position and cash flows.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could result irhigher costs and reduced margins.

Substantially all of our products are manufactuwetside of the U.S. and, therefore, currency exgbaate fluctuations could result in higher
costs for our products, or could disrupt the bussnaf independent manufacturers that produce aglygts, by making their purchases of raw
materials more expensive and more difficult to fioe. Our future financial results could be sigmrifily affected by the value of the U.S. dollar
in relation to the foreign currencies in which weer customers or our suppliers conduct businesseRédluctuations in the Chinese Renminbi
exchange rate have caused our costs for certaflupi®to increase, reducing our margins and cas¥sflSimilar fluctuations and cost
increases may occur in the future. If we are untiblacrease our selling prices to offset such austases, or if such increases have a neg
impact on sales of our products, our revenues argins would be reduced and our operating resatiscash flows would be negatively
impacted. In addition, a portion of our revenudesived from sales outside the U.S., primarily Bn@da. Currency rate
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fluctuations could make our products more expenfavéoreign consumers and reduce our sales, wlimld negatively affect our operating
results and cash flows.

Failure or inability to protect our intellectual pr operty could significantly harm our competitive postion.

Protecting our intellectual property is an esséifdietor in maintaining our competitive positiontime health and fitness industry. If we do not,
or are unable to, adequately protect our intellgbuoperty, we may face difficulty in differentiiagy our products from those of our competit
and our sales and profitability may be adversellgcaéd. We own numerous patents and trademarkslwinkk. However, our efforts to protect
our proprietary rights may be inadequate, and aable laws provide only limited protection.

Trademark infringement or other intellectual property claims relating to our products could increase or costs.

Our industry is susceptible to litigation regardingdemark and patent infringement and other ietéllal property rights. We could become a
plaintiff or defendant in litigation involving tramnark or patent infringement claims or claims afdwh of license. The prosecution or defense
of intellectual property litigation is both cost#yd disruptive of the time and resources of ouragament, even if the claim or defense agains
us is without merit. We could also be required ay pubstantial damages or settlement costs toveegakllectual property litigation or related
matters.

We also may not be able to successfully acquiedl@ttual property rights, protect existing righds potentially prevent others from claiming

that we have violated their proprietary rights wheslaunch new products. We could incur substantats in defending against such claims
even if they are without basis, and we could becsufgect to judgments or settlements requiringoysaly substantial damages, royalties or

other charges.

Future impairments of intangible assets could negately impact our operating results.

We had goodwill of $2.9 million and other intangildssets of $14.7 million as of December 31, 28hg.future impairment charges, if
significant, could materially and adversely affeat operating results. An unexpected decline irnee, changes in market conditions, cha
in competitive products or technologies or a changaanagement's intentions regarding utilizatibmtangible assets could lead to future
impairment charges.

We are subject to periodic litigation, product liaklity risk and other regulatory proceedings which muld result in unexpected expense
time and resources.

From time to time, we may be a defendant in lavgsatitd regulatory actions relating to our businegsheformer operations of our
discontinued Commercial business segment. Duestintierent uncertainties of litigation and regutatoroceedings, we cannot accurately
predict the ultimate outcome of any such proceeddiAg unfavorable outcome could have a materiabesdvimpact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In additiamy aignificant litigation in the future, regardlesisits merits, could divert management's
attention from our operations and may result instaititial legal costs.

We are subject to warranty claims for our productswhich could result in unexpected expense.

Many of our products carry limited warranties fefelcts in quality and workmanship. We may expe®esignificant expense as the result of
product quality issues, product recalls or prodiadility claims which may have a material advee$ect on our business. We maintain a
warranty reserve for estimated future warrantynetaiHowever, the actual costs of servicing futueeranty claims may exceed the reserve an
have a material adverse effect on our results efaippns, financial condition and cash flows. ldi&idn, we remain contingently liable for
product warranty obligations which were transfeti@tduyers of our Commercial business product Jiifeake buyer is unable to fulfill such
obligations.

Disruption to our information and communication sysems could result in interruptions to our businessand the planned implementatior
of new systems for critical business functions hdigens the risk of disruption.

Our business is reliant on information and commatinn technology, and a substantial portion ofrewenues are generated with the support
of information and communication systems. The ss&@é our Direct business is heavily dependentwrability to respond to customer sales
inquiries and process sales transactions usingallicenter communication systems, Internet websited similar data monitoring and
communication systems provided and supported bg-frarties. If such systems were to fail, or exgeece significant or lengthy interruptions
in availability or service, our revenues could batenially affected. We also rely on informationtgyss in all stages of our product cycle, from
design to distribution, and we use such systenasrasthod of communication between employees, snspdind customers. In addition, we use
information
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systems to maintain our accounting records, aisstsade receivables collection and customer sergforts, and forecast operating results an
cash flows.

System failures or service interruptions may o@slithe result of a number of factors, includingnpater viruses; hacking or other unlawful
activities by third parties; disasters; equipméatdware or software failures; ineffective implernagion of new systems or systems upgrades;
cable outages, extended power failures, or ourilibabr failure to properly protect, repair or nmé&in our communication and information
systems. To mitigate the risk of business intefauptwe have in place a disaster recovery progreahtirgets our most critical operational
systems. If our disaster recovery system is inéffecin whole or in part, or efforts conductedusyor third-parties to prevent or respond to
system interruptions in a timely manner are ingffec our ability to conduct operations would bgrsficantly affected. If we do not consider
the potential impact of critical decisions relatedystems or process design and implementatienctiuld lead to operational challenges and
increased costs. Any of the aforementioned facowd have a material adverse affect on our opega@sults, financial position and cash
flows.

Our current primary enterprise resource plannirgiesy is highly customized to our business and we erperience difficulties as we
transition to new systems during 2013. Difficult@sdelays in implementing our new information syss or significant system failures could
disrupt our operations and have a material adwffeet on our operating results, financial positéomd cash flows.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Following is a summary of our principal propertésof December 31, 2012 :

Owned or

Location Primary Function(s) Leased
Washington Corporate headquarters and customer call center Leased
Oregon Warehouse and distribution Leased
Canada Warehouse, distribution and showroom Leased
China Quality assurance office Leased

Each of our principal properties is used by bothinect segment and our Retail segment. Our pt@segenerally are well-maintained,
adequate and suitable for their intended purposeésva believe our existing properties will meet operational needs for the foreseeable
future. If we require additional warehouse or afgpace in the future, we believe we will be ablelitain such space on commercially
reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are party to various legal proceedings and dairising from normal business activities. In additour tax filings are subject to audit by
authorities in the jurisdictions where we condugsibess, which may result in assessments of addlttaxes. Management believes the
Company has adequately provided for obligationswoauld result from these legal and tax proceedimbsre it is probable the Company will
pay some amounts and the amounts can be reasastiohated. In some cases, however, it is too ¢anyedict a final outcome. Management
believes that the ultimate resolution of these enativill not have a material effect on the Compafipancial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market for our Common Stocl
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stocklange (the “NYSE”) and trades under the symbolSNLOn February 28, 2013, the
closing sale price of our common stock was $5.%Xhare, as reported on the NYSE. As of Februar2@83, there were 46 holders of record

of our common stock and approximately 24,000 ber@fshareholders. The following table sets fohé high and low sales prices and
dividends paid per common share for each periosgpred:

High Low Dividends Paid

2012:
Quarter 1 $ 3.04 $ 1.74 —
Quarter 2 3.5( 2.2(C —
Quarter 3 3.64 2.2¢ —
Quarter 4 4.0C 2.5¢ —

2011:
Quarter 1 3.3( 1.81 —
Quarter 2 3.4% 1.5¢ —
Quarter 3 2.2¢L 1.32 —
Quarter 4 2.2C 1.3¢ —

Currently, we have no plans to pay dividends onomumnmon stock. Payment of any future dividends,wbermitted under our borrowing
arrangements, is at the discretion of our Boarioéctors, which considers various factors suchuasinancial condition, operating results,
current and anticipated cash needs and future sigaplans.

Equity Compensation Plan

The following table provides information about @guity compensation plans as of December 31, 2012 :

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities Weighted average equity compensation
to be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérsid 1,729,00! $ 6.92 3,844,001
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers — — —
Total 1,729,00! 6.92 3,844,001

For further information regarding our equity comgation plans, refer to Note 12, Stockholders' Bguit our consolidated financial stateme
in Part Il, Item 8 of this report.
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The following table provides information about issuepurchases of equity securities during thetfoguarter ended December 31, 2012:

(a) (b) )
(c) Maximum Number

Total Number of (or Approximate Dollar

Average Shares (or Units) Value) of Shares (or

Total Number of Price Paid Purchased as Part  Units) that May Yet Be

Shares (or Units) per Share  of Publicly AnnouncedPurchased Under the Plans
Period Purchased’ (or Unit) Plans or Programs Programs

October 1 to October 31, 2012 1,634 $2.81 — —
November 1 to November 30, 2012 1,634 3.40 — —
December 1 to December 31, 2012 1,634 3.51 = =
Total 4,902 3.24 — —

@ Consists of shares withheld from delivery upattiesment of the vesting portion of a restrictedcktanit award granted to Bruce M.
Cazenave, our Chief Executive Officer. We willlwbibld from the settlement of each monthly vestiagipn of the award the number of
shares sufficient to satisfy Mr. Cazenave's takdtding obligation incident to such vesting, usldr. Cazenave should first elect to satisfy
the tax obligation by cash payment to us. We ddawe any publicly announced equity securitiesirefpase plans or programs.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation

The following discussion and analysis is based uparfinancial statements as of the dates andfergeriods presented in this section. You
should read this discussion and analysis in corjonowith the financial statements and notes thefetind in Part Il, Item 8 of this report. All
references to the years 2012, 2011 and 2010 meatwilve-month periods ended December 31, 2012, 20d 2010, respectively. Unless the
context otherwise requires, “Nautilus,” “we,” “us’and “our” refer to Nautilus, Inc. and its subsidi@s. Unless indicated otherwise, all
information regarding our operating results pertaito our continuing operations.

Our results of operations may vary significantlynir period-to-period. Our revenues typically fluceidue to the seasonality of our industry,
customer buying patterns, product innovation, thieire and level of competition for health and f#m@roducts, our ability to procure products
to meet customer demand, the level of spendinguath effectiveness of, our media and advertisingamms and our ability to attract new
customers and maintain existing sales relationskipaddition, our revenues are highly susceptibleconomic factors, including, among othet
things, the overall condition of the economy arel alvailability of consumer credit in both the Uditstates and Canada. Our profit margins
may vary in response to the aforementioned faeodsour ability to manage product costs. Profitgives may also be affected by fluctuations
in the costs or availability of materials used tanafacture our products, product warranty costghér or lower fuel prices, and changes in
costs of other distribution or manufacturing-reteservices. Our operating profits or losses may bésaffected by the efficiency and
effectiveness of our organization. Historicallyy @perating expenses have been influenced by noedia to produce and air television
advertisements of our products, facility costs,rapieg costs of our information and communicatiepstems, product supply chain
management, customer support and new product dewelat activities. In addition, our operating expenbkave been affected from time-to-
time by asset impairment charges, restructuringggsaand other significant unusual or infrequepeases.

As a result of the above and other factors, ouogen-period operating results may not be indieatf future performance. You should not
place undue reliance on our operating results hodld consider our prospects in light of the riskgyenses and difficulties typically
encountered by us and other companies, both watiihoutside our industry. We may not be able teessfully address these risks and
difficulties and, consequently, we cannot assuregfoany future growth or profitability. For moneformation, see our discussion of Risk
Factors located at Part I, Iltem 1A of this report.

OVERVIEW

We are committed to providing innovative, qualibigions to help people achieve a fit and healifegtyle. Our principal business activities
include designing, developing, sourcing and mankgetiigh-quality cardiovascular and strength fitngsxlucts and related accessories for
consumer home use, primarily in the United States@anada. Our products are sold under some ahtis¢ recognized brand names in the
fitness industry: Nautilus, Bowflex®, Schwinn®, Schwinn Fitness™ and Universal

We market our products through two distinct disttibn channels, Direct and Retail, which we constdébe separate business segments. Ou
Direct business offers products directly to consttlerough television advertising, the Internet aathlogs. Our Retail business offers our
products through a network of third-party retaileith stores and websites located in the UnitedeStand internationally. We also derive a
portion of our revenues from the licensing of otartdls and intellectual property.

Our net sales in 2012 were $193.9 million , anéase of $13.5 million , or 7.5% , compared to atdsof $180.4 million in 2011 , largely due
to higher sales of cardio products, especiallyBbeflex TreadClimber, which we believe was drivenibbcreased advertising effectiveness,
improved call center effectiveness and higher bdBsumer credit approval rates.

Income from continuing operations was $10.6 million2012 , compared to $2.5 million for 2011 .dnte from continuing operations was
$0.34 per diluted share in 2012 , compared to8peb diluted share in 2011 . The significant inyarment in our results from continuing
operations was primarily attributable to increasalks and higher gross margin in our Direct busineempared to 2011.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslitievenues and expenses, and related disclagures
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contingent assets and liabilities in the consoiddinancial statements. An accounting estimateisidered to be critical if it meets both of
following criteria: (i) the estimate requires asgiions about matters that are highly uncertaimatime the accounting estimate is made, and
(i) different estimates reasonably could have hesed, or changes in the estimate that are realsdiiaby to occur from period to period may
have a material impact on the presentation of imantial condition, changes in financial conditmmresults of operations.

Our critical accounting policies and estimatesdiseussed below. We have not made any materialgetsain the methodologies we use in our
critical accounting estimates during the past tliisal years. If our assumptions or estimates ghan future periods, the impact on our
financial position and operating results could kaeral.

Sales Discounts and Allowances

Product sales and shipping revenues are reporteaf pepomotional discounts and return allowances. &timate the revenue impact of retail
sales incentive programs based on the plannedidluiaitthe program and historical experience. & #mount of our retail sales incentives can
be reasonably estimated, we record the impactalf Bicentives at the later of the time we notify oustomer of the sales incentive, or the 1
of the sale. If actual amounts differ from our esties, revenue is adjusted.

Our calculation of amounts owed for sales discoantsallowances contains uncertainties becauseuines management to make assump
in interim periods and to apply judgment regardingumber of factors, including estimated future@uer inventory purchases and returns.

Goodwill and Intangible Asset Valuation

We evaluate our indefinite-lived intangible assatd goodwill for potential impairment annually on@n events or circumstances indicate thei
carrying value may be impaired. Finite-lived intdolg assets, including patents and patent righésegaluated for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value may hmined. No goodwill or intangible asset impairmeimarges were recognized in 2012 or
2011.

Our impairment loss calculations contain unceriainbecause they require management to make asesnmand to apply judgment in order to
estimate future cash flows and asset fair values j@gments regarding potential impairment areeas a number of factors including: the
timing and amount of anticipated cash flows; madatditions; relative levels of risk; the cost apial; terminal values; royalty rates; and the
allocation of revenues, expenses and assets dnilitiéa to business segments. Each of these faciam significantly affect the value of our
goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets atitgreby, could have a material adverse affectusrfioancial position and results of
operations.

Product Warranty Obligation

Our products carry limited defined warranties fefatts in materials or workmanship. Our productrasties generally obligate us to pay for
the cost of replacement parts, cost of shippingtrés to our customers and, in certain instarssgsjce labor costs. At the time of sale, we
record a liability for the estimated costs of fllilfig future warranty claims. The estimated waryarsts are recorded as a component of cost
sales, based on historical warranty claim expedeamd available product quality data. If necessaeyadjust our liability for specific warranty
matters when they become known and are reasonstityable. Our estimates of warranty expenses aedoan significant judgment, and the
frequency and cost of warranty claims are subjeeatiation. Warranty expenses are affected by#réormance of new products, significant
manufacturing or design defects not discovered afiér the product is delivered to the customeodpct failure rates and variances in
expected repair costs.

Litigation and Loss Contingenci

From time to time, we may be involved in claimsydaits and other proceedings. Such matters inuahvertainty as to the eventual outcomes
and any losses or gains we may ultimately realizenwone or more future events occur or fail to océie record expenses for litigation and
loss contingencies when it is probable that aliighdias been incurred and the amount of the lagsbe reasonably estimated. We estimate th
probability of such losses based on the advicatefmal and external counsel, outcomes from sirfitigation, status of the lawsuits (including
settlement initiatives), legislative developmenmid ather factors.

Due to the numerous variables associated with tluelggnents and assumptions, both the precisionraiability of the resulting estimates of
the related loss contingencies are subject to aobiat uncertainties. We regularly monitor our mstied exposure to these contingencies ar
additional information becomes known, we may chamgreestimates accordingly.
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Deferred Tax Asse- Valuation Allowance

We account for income taxes based on the assdiadnility method, whereby deferred tax assets @atillties are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts and théé&esis of existing assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurid tise enacted tax rates that are expected to b#fdct when the temporary differences are
expected to be included, as income or expenshegiapplicable tax return. The effect of a changexrates on our deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in the period of the etmaent. A tax benefit from an uncertain tax positinay be recognized when it is more likely
than not that the position will be sustained basethe technical merits of the position upon exatiam, including resolutions of any related
appeals or litigation.

We have recorded a valuation allowance to reducelefgrred tax assets to the amount we believeoig fiikely than not to be realized. As we
determined, based on reviewing all the positive meghtive evidence, that it is more likely than thatt the benefit from our deferred tax asset:
will not be realized, we have a valuation allowangainst net deferred tax assets of $57.2 millidour assumptions change and we detert
we will be able to realize these deferred tax assle¢ tax benefits related to any reversal oivéilgation allowance will be accounted for in the
period in which we make such determination. Likeyshould we determine that we would be able tlizeeaur deferred tax assets in the
future in excess of our recorded amount, an adgstito the deferred tax assets would increase iadarthe period such determination was
made.

Significant judgments are required in determiniaxgy provisions and evaluating tax positions. Suclginents require us to interpret existing
law and other published guidance as applied tacboumstances. In particular, our valuation alloe@&oontains uncertainties because
management is required to make assumptions arngbty mdgment to estimate the future realizatiomef deferred tax assets. If our financial
results or other relevant facts change, therebwatipg the likelihood of realizing the tax benefitan uncertain tax position, significant
judgment would be applied in determining the effefcthe change on our valuation allowar
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND2011

The discussion that follows should be read in cocijipn with our consolidated financial statememtd the related notes in this report. All
comparisons to prior year results are in referea@mntinuing operations only in each period, usletherwise indicated.

The following table compares selected financiabinfation in our consolidated statements of opematfor the years enddakecember 31, 201

and 2011 (in thousands):

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Research and development
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other
Total other expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense

Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operation, nenebime taxes

Net income

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change % Change
$ 193,92¢ $ 180,41. $ 13,51 7.5%
102,88¢ 101,95: 93¢ 0.€%
91,03 78,45¢ 12,57¢ 16.(%
58,611 54,49: 4,12: 7.€%
17,66¢ 17,14: 52¢ 3.1%
4,16: 3,22 94( 29.2%
80,44¢ 74,86( 5,58¢ 7.5%
10,58¢ 3,59¢ 6,98¢
18 65 (47
56 (46€) 52z
(246) (11) (23%)
(172 (412 24C
10,41¢ 3,187 7,22¢
(226) 68¢€ (912)
10,64 2,501 8,141
6,241 (1,08 7,32z
$ 16,88: $ 1,42( $ 15,46:

The following table compares the net sales andsgmargins of our business segments for the yeasdedecember 31, 2012 and 2011 (in

thousands):

Net sales:
Direct
Retail
Royalty income
Total net sales
Gross profit:
Direct
Retalil
Royalty income
Total gross profit
Gross margin:
Direct
Retail

Year Ended December 31,

17

2012 2011 Change % Change

$ 124,97¢ $ 107,06: $ 17,911 16.7%
63,89: 68,59 (4,700 (6.9)%
5,057 4,76( 297 6.2%
$ 193,92¢ $ 180,41. $ 13,51« 7.5%
$ 71,62¢ $ 57,65¢ $ 13,97« 24.2%
14,35! 16,04 (1,699 (10.6%
5,057 4,76( 297 6.2%
$ 91,03 $ 78,45¢ $ 12,57¢ 16.C %

57.2% 53.% 34C basis points

22.5% 23.4% (90) basis points
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The following table compares the net sales of oajomproduct lines within each business segmenthi®ryears ended December 31, 2012 an
2011 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change % Change

Direct net sales:
Cardio product§’ $ 100,67 % 75,98. $ 24,69¢ 32.5%
Strength product® 24,30: 31,07¢ (6,779 (21.%
Total Direct net sales 124,97¢ 107,06: 17,91° 16.7%

Retail net sales:
Cardio product8’ 36,20¢ 43,71¢ (7,509 (17.29%
Strength product® 27,68 24,87: 2,80¢ 11.2%
Total Retall net sales 63,89: 68,59 (4,700 (6.9%
Royalty income 5,057 4,76( 297 6.2%
Total net sales $ 19392« $ 180,41 $ 13,51« 7.E%

@ Cardio products include treadclimbers, treadmdiercise bikes, ellipticals and CoreBody Reformer.
@Strength products include home gyms, selectorizenldells, kettlebell weights and weight benches.

Direct

Net sales of our Direct business w$125.0 million in 2012 , an increase of $17.9 miili, or 16.7% , compared to Direct net sales off$l.0
million in 2011 . Revenues of cardio products im Birect channel increased by 32.5% in 2012 , camgbéo 2011 , reflecting strong consumel
demand for our cardio products, especially the BawdreadClimber, which we believe was driven bgré@ased advertising effectiveness,
improved call center effectiveness and higher doBsumer credit approval rates. Combined consuneéit@pprovals by our primary and
secondary U.S. third-party financing providers @ased to 32% in 2012 from 25% in 2011. We expest tbnsumer credit financing approval
rates in 2013 approximately consistent with theZ2lgélel.

The increase in Direct sales of cardio products peatially offset by a 21.8% decline in Direct safd strength products, primarily rod-based
home gyms. The decline in sales of rod-based homms gs attributable in part to the cessation aftigion advertising for these products, as
management determined that television ad spendinbis mature product category was generating igfigatory returns. We have marketed
rod-based home gyms through more cost efficierihemhedia since early 2011.

Cost of sales of our Direct business increased @680 $53.4 million in 2012 , compared to $49.4lioni in 2011 . Of this $4.0 million
increase in cost of sales, approximately $7.3 amillivas due to higher sales volume, partially offset $2.9 million decrease in cost of sales
primarily attributable to a shift in product sales< and a $0.4 million reduction in supply chairsts) including freight.

Gross margin of our Direct business was 57.3% t220an increase of 340 basis points compared1& 2Gross margin of our Direct busin
in 2012 benefited from greater absorption of fisegply chain costs due to higher sales volume, epetpto 2011.

Retail

Net sales of our Retail business w$63.9 million in 2012 , a decrease of $4.7 milli@mr 6.9% , compared to Retail net sales of $68lkom
in 2011, primarily due to lower sales of certa@mdio products, including indoor bikes and ellipt& Total Retail sales of cardio products
decreased by 17.2% , compared to 2011 . In 20E2ajlBales of strength products increased by 11.Bftnarily due to higher sales of
selectorized dumbbells, compared to 2011 .

Cost of sales of our Retail business declined b $8llion, or 5.7%, to $49.5 million in 2012 , cpared to $52.5 million in 2011 , almost
entirely due to the decline in Retail sales volume.
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Gross margin of our Retail business was 22.5% 22@ decrease of 90 basis points compared to 284 the Retail price increase we
implemented in the third quarter of 2012 was mbemntoffset by less absorption of fixed supply chaiats due to lower sales volume,
compared to 2011.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses were $80.4 million in 2012inarease of $5.6 million , or 7.5% , compared teraing expenses of $74.9 million in
2011 . As a percent of revenue, operating expemrseained unchanged at 41.5% of net sales. Theadseri@ operating expenses was largely
due to an increase of $4.1 million in selling anarketing expense and a $0.9 milliocrease in research and development expensediticex

general and administrative expenses increased Byrillion in 2012 , compared to 2011 .

Selling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses were $58.6 milin2d12 , an increase of $4.1 million , or 7.6%mpared to 2011 , mainly due to higher

advertising expense of our Direct business. Adsiagi expense of our Direct business, a componeseltifig and marketing expenses, was
$30.9 million in 2012 , an increase of $2.3 millian 8.0%, compared to 2011 , reflecting managemeffort to increase Direct revenues in
2012 by increasing advertising levels of existimgducts and promoting new products.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses were $17.1omith 2012 , an increase of $0.5 million , or 3.1#empared to 2011 , primarily due to
increases in information technology and legal egpsriotaling $1.0 million, partially offset by redions of $0.3 million in depreciation and
amortization expenses and $0.2 million in persocnsts.

Research and Developme

Research and development expenses were $4.2 mill@®l2 , an increase of $0.9 million , or 29.286mpared to 2011 , as we increased ou
investment in new product development resourcesapdbilities.

Other Income and Expense

Interest Expens

Negative interest expense$0.1 million in 2012arose from the prepayment in March 2012 of ourdasing Rate Senior Discount Notes. E
repayment of the notes resulted in a lower aveefigetive interest rate over the term of the ndibas would have applied if the notes had bee
held to maturity. In periods preceding the repayinaae, we used the average effective interestasmtethe notes were held to maturity in
determining the amount of interest expense incullredrest expense was $0.5 million in 2011 . Weehzot borrowed under our current
financing agreement with Bank of the West, othantto fund our outstanding letters of credit. Fareninformation, see LIQUIDITY AND
CAPITAL RESOURCES - Financing Arrangemehts

Other Expense

Other expense was $0.2 million in 2012 , companddds than $0.1 million in 2011 , primarily duecttanges in foreign currency exchange
gains and losses.

Income Tax Expensi

Income tax benefit was $0.2 million in 2012 , comggbto income tax expense of $0.7 million in 201icome tax benefit in 2012 primarily
relates to the expiration of statutes of limitatagplicable to our liabilities for uncertain taxgitoons in certain jurisdictions. Income tax
expense in 2011 was attributable to the taxablenmecgenerated in Canada and the result of the Quoyigpancertain tax positions.
Generally we did not recognize U.S. income tax espeassociated with our income from continuing af@ns for 2012 and 2011 due to the

valuation allowance against the net deferred tartas
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Discontinued Operatior

Income from discontinued operation, net of incomees, was $6.2 million in 2012 , compared to a tdskl.1 million in 2011 . In the fourth
quarter of 2012, we substantially completed theitigtion of our investment in foreign subsidiariesnerly associated with the Commercial
business. As a result, an accumulated translatdprstment of $6.2 million was removed as a sepamateponent of equity and recognized as ¢
gain of the discontinued operation. Loss from digitmed operation in 2011 was net of a reductiofi®® million in the amount of pre-tax
disposal loss previously estimated in connectiaih Wie divestiture of our Commercial business. Serpgenses may be incurred in 2013 in
connection with the settlement of contingenciesilagi from and directly related to our Commerciasibass prior to its disposal.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND2010

The discussion that follows should be read in cocijipn with our consolidated financial statememtd the related notes in this report. All
comparisons to prior year results are in referea@mntinuing operations only in each period, usletherwise indicated.

The following table compares selected financiabinfation in our consolidated statements of opematfor the years ended December 31, :
and 2010 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change % Change
Net sales $ 180,41: $ 168,45( $ 11,96: 7.1%
Cost of sales 101,95: 91,70¢ 10,24¢ 11.2%
Gross profit 78,45¢ 76,74¢ 1,71: 2.2%
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 54,49¢ 64,03¢ (9,545 (14.9%
General and administrative 17,14: 19,37: (2,229 (11.5%
Research and development 3,22t 2,90t 31¢€ 10.€%
Total operating expenses 74,86( 86,31¢ (11,45% (13.9%
Operating income (loss) 3,59¢ (9,569 13,16¢
Other income (expense):
Interest income 65 15 50
Interest expense (46€) (140 (32€)
Other (11) 464 (475)
Total other income (expense) (412 33¢ (757)
Income (loss) before income taxes 3,18 (9,230 12,417
Income tax expense 68€ 58¢€ 98
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,501 (9,81¢) 12,31¢
Loss from discontinued operation, net of income$ax (1,087 (13,027 11,94:
Net income (loss) $ 1,42( $ (22,84) % 24,26

The following table compares the net sales andsgmargins of our business segments for the yeasdeDecember 31, 2011 and 2010 (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change % Change
Net sales:
Direct $ 107,06: $ 96,66¢ $ 10,39: 10.£%
Retail 68,59 67,78¢ 802 1.2%
Royalty income 4,76( 3,99¢ 767 19.2%
Total net sales $ 180,41: $ 168,45( $ 11,96: 7.1%
Gross profit:
Direct $ 57,65t $ 54,04: $ 3,61 6.7 %
Retail 16,04 18,71: (2,667) (14.9%
Royalty income 4,76( 3,99¢ 76€ 19.2%
Total gross profit $ 78,45¢ $ 76,74¢ $ 1,71z 2.2%
Gross margin:
Direct 53.¢% 55.% (200C) basis points
Retall 23.2% 27.€% (42C) basis points
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The following table compares the net sales of oajomproduct lines within each business segmenthi®ryears ended December 31, 2011 an
2010 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change % Change

Direct net sales:
Cardio product§’ $ 75,98: $ 54,40¢ $ 21,57 39.€%
Strength product® 31,07¢ 42,25¢ (11,180 (26.5)%
Total Direct net sales 107,06: 96,66¢ 10,39: 10.€%

Retail net sales:
Cardio product8’ 43,71¢ 43,62¢ 90 0.2%
Strength product® 24,87 24,16 71z 2.£%
Total Retail net sales 68,59: 67,78¢ 80z 1.2%
Royalty income 4,76( 3,99¢ 767 19.2 %
Total net sales $ 180,41: $ 168,45( % 11,96: 7.1%

@ Cardio products include treadclimbers, treadmdiercise bikes and ellipticals and CoreBody Reéarm
@Strength products include home gyms, selectorizenldells, kettlebell weights and weight benches.

Direct

Net sales of our Direct business were $107.1 miliilo2011, an increase of $10.4 million, or 10.84mpared to Direct net sales of $9

million in 2010. Revenues of cardio products in Binect channel increased by 39.6% in 2011, compare010, primarily due to higher sales
of Bowflex TreadClimber products. The increase ireb sales of cardio products was partially offsgta 26.5% decline in Direct sales of
strength products, primarily rod-based home gynhe decline in sales of rod-based home gyms idbatable in part to the cessation of
television advertising for these products, as isiem ad spending on this mature product categ@y generating unsatisfactory returns. We
have marketed rod-based home gyms through moreeffasént online media since early 2011.

In September 2010, we completed our transitionnewa consumer credit program with a new primarydtpiarty financing provider, GE
Capital Retail Bank, formerly GE Money Bank ("GEThe relationship with GE has expanded the abilftgur customers to obtain third-party
consumer financing for buying our products. In &éiddi we added one secondary thparty consumer credit financing provider during thied
quarter of 2010 and another in early 2011, botwlith offer credit to certain qualified consumernsose credit applications have been decl
by GE. As a result, combined consumer credit apgdsoy our primary and secondary U.S. third-pargricing providers increased from 15%
in 2010 to 25% in 2011.

Cost of sales of our Direct business increased5§% to $49.4 million, compared to $42.6 millionZ810. Of this increase of $6.8 million,
approximately $3.9 million was due to higher salelume, $1.1 million was due to comparatively higtelivery costs, including in-home
assembly expense, $0.5 million was due to highgplgichain costs, $0.5 million was attributablénigher warranty expenses associated with
increased sales of cardio products and $0.8 milliaa due to higher product costs, largely arisingnfchanges in foreign currency exchange
rates between the U.S. and China, and various tabtars.

Gross margin of our Direct business was 53.9% [112@ decrease of 200 basis points compared to, Peib@arily due to higher outbound
freight costs, reflecting increased sales of in-B@ssembly services, which are sold to customesdaively low margins.

Retail
Net sales of our Retail business were $68.6 millioR011, an increase of $0.8 million, or 1.2%, pamed to Retail net sales of $67.8 millior
2010, primarily driven by growth among our e-comeeeRetail customers. In 2011, Retail sales of gtfeproducts increased by 2.9%,

primarily due to higher sales of home gyms, andssaf cardio products increased by 0.2%, compar@®10.

Cost of sales of our Retail business increased ¥ 7o $52.5 million, compared to $49.1 millionZ@10. Of this increase of $3.4 million,
approximately $0.5 million was due to higher saleltime, $1.6 million was due to higher product spst
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primarily arising from changes in foreign currerecschange rates between the U.S. and China, andvllich was attributable to higher
supply chain costs, including outbound freight.

Gross margin of our Retail business was 23.4% 1128 decrease of 420 basis points compared to, 20Which approximately 280 basis
points was due to increased costs of certain ptedlazgely arising from changes in foreign curgeagchange rates, and approximately 140
basis points was due to higher supply chain castkjding freight.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses were $74.9 million in 2011,@edese of $11.5 million, or 13.3%, compared to afeg expenses of $86.3 million in 20
This reduction was achieved primarily through meifective media advertising, which enabled morekft spending. In addition, general

and administrative expenses decreased by $2.2miti 2011, compared to 2010.

Selling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses were $54.5 millin2d11, a decrease of $9.5 million, or 14.9%, caegbéo 2010. Advertising expense of our
Direct business, a component of selling and mangegxpenses, in 2011 was $28.6 million, a decreb$&2.0 million, or 29.6%, compared to
2010. The comparative decrease in Direct advegtiskpenses was primarily attributable to managemeéatision in early 2011 to shift
advertising away from the mature home-gym categoryto increase the media investment in our Traadi@r product line. Beginning in
early 2011, we shifted the marketing of home gyromftelevision advertising to more cost efficientioe media. Lower comparable Direct
advertising expenses were offset in part by higlesumer credit financing costs, as a result ofisetiglly improving consumer credit
approval rates, and the availability of additios@tondary consumer financing providers in 201tpaspared to 2010.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses were $17.lomith 2011, a decrease of $2.2 million, or 11.8%mpared to 2010, primarily due to lov
depreciation expense.

Research and Developme

Research and development expenses were $3.2 mill@®l11, an increase of $0.3 million, or 10.9%mepared to 2010, as we increased our
investment in new product development resourcesapdbilities.

Other Income and Expense

Interest Expens

We incurred interest expense of $0.5 million in 2@1 connection with our long-term note payablenpared to $0.1 million in 2010. We have
not borrowed under our current financing agreemstht Bank of the West, other than to fund our cansling letters of credit.

Other Expense

Other expense was less than $0.1 million in 20&@ipared to $0.5 million in 2010, primarily due teaages in foreign currency exchange
gains and losses.

Income Tax Expensi

Income tax expense was $0.7 million in 2011, coregbdo income tax expense of $0.6 million in 20X@ primarily relates to taxable income
generated in Canada.

We increased our valuation allowances in 2010doce U.S. deferred income tax assets generateaigdiné respective years to the amounts

expected, more likely than not, to be realizedakssult, generally we did not recognize U.S. inedax benefits associated with our operating
loss in 2010.
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Discontinued Operatior

Loss from discontinued operation, net of incomesaxvas $1.1 million in 2011, compared to a losB1&.0 million in 2010, as we completed
the disposal of assets held for sale of our for@@mnmercial business in April 2011. Loss from didaared operation in 2011 and 2010 was
net of reductions of $0.9 million and $3.7 milliarspectively, in the amount of pre-tax disposss$Ipreviously estimated in connection with
the divestiture of our Commercial business.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2012, we had $23.2 millionadttand cash equivalents, compared to $17.4 makoof December 31, 2011 . The
principal source of this increase in liquidity wash provided by operating activities of $12.8 imnillin 2012 , compared to $4.6 million in
2011 . Management believes that sufficient fundklvei available to meet our expected cash needstfi@ast the next twelve months, based o
cash currently on hand and anticipated cash floars bperations.

Cash provided by operating activities of $12.8 imillin 2012 consisted primarily of income from daning operations of $10.6 million .
Income from discontinued operation of $6.2 millmonsisted almost entirely of a non-cash gain reéliehe substantial liquidation of foreign
entities. An increase in trade payables providesth @d $4.2 million and a decrease in trade recéadsprovided cash of $1.9 million in 2012 .
These increases in liquidity were partially offegt$7.6 million of cash used for an increase iremories in 2012 aimed at supporting the
anticipated level of sales growth of our business.

Cash provided by operating activities of $4.6 millin 2011 consisted primarily of income from caning operations, partially offset by loss
from discontinued operation, as adjusted for nashdtems. Cash provided by a $4.0 million increéaseade payables was more than offset by
a $4.6 million increase in trade receivables ad.8 million increase in inventories.

The following table presents comparative cash floslated to trade receivables and inventoriesieryears ended December 31, 2012 , 2011
and 2010 (in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Trade receivables:
Collections $ 195,85: $ 175,83 $ 188,29
Sales on account (193,921 (180,417 (181,04

Net cash (used in)/provided by trade receivables  $ 1,92¢ % (4,580 $ 7,241

Inventories:
Shipments $ 77,58( $ 78,13¢ $ 81,98(
Purchases (85,159 (79,42¢) (75,637
Net cash (used in)/provided by inventories $ (7579  $ (1,287) % 6,347

Cash used in investing activities in 2012 of $2ilion consisted of $2.4 million used to purchasenputer software and production tooling,
partially offset by $0.4 million in previously defed proceeds from the sale of portions of ouratiioued Commercial business.

Cash used in investing activities in 2011 of $0iBion consisted of $2.5 million used to purchasenputer software and production tooling,
partially offset by $1.3 million in proceeds frofretsale of portions of our discontinued Commeteisiness and $0.4 million from a decrease
in the amount of restricted cash collateralizing autstanding letters of credit.

Cash used in financing activities in 2012 of $4i8iom consisted of $5.0 million used to repay duicreasing Rate Senior Discount Notes,
partially offset by $0.1 million provided by theesxise of stock options.

Cash used in financing activities in 2011 was thas $0.1 million for payment of bank financing t0s

Financing Arrangements
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We have a Credit Agreement (the "Loan Agreemenith Bank of the West that, as amended and restateédarch 30, 2012, provides for a
$15,750,000 maximum revolving secured credit [iFige line of credit is available through March 3Q13 for working capital, standby letters
of credit and general corporate purposes. Borrowirgjlability under the Loan Agreement is subjecbtir compliance with certain financial
and operating covenants at the time borrowingseareested. Standby letters of credit under the lAgnreement are treated as a reduction of
the available borrowing amount and are subjecbt@noant testing.

The interest rate applicable to borrowings underLtban Agreement is based on either, at our discreBank of the West's base rate, a floa
rate or LIBOR , plus an applicable margin basedentain Company financial performance metrics. Burowing rate was 2.00% as of
December 31, 2012 . The Loan Agreement contain®esy covenants, including minimum fixed chargearage ratio and leverage ratio,
and limitations on capital expenditures, merges asquisitions, indebtedness, liens, dispositididgdends and investments. The Loan
Agreement also contains customary events of defdplbn an event of default, the lender has theooptf terminating its credit commitment
and accelerating all obligations under the Loaneggnent. Borrowings under the Loan Agreement alateohlized by substantially all of our
assets, including intellectual property assets.

As of December 31, 2012 , we had no outstandingplangs and $1.0 million in standby letters of d¢téssued under the Loan Agreement. As
of December 31, 2012 , we were in compliance withfinancial covenants of the Loan Agreement aqpi@apmately $14.8 million was
available for borrowing.

On September 3, 2010, we entered into a Note Psechgreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with ceraiities (collectively, the
“Sherborne Purchasers”) under common control ofi&irae Investors GP, LLC and its affiliates (cdlieely “Sherborne”). Sherborne was
formerly our largest shareholder and is controbigddward J. Bramson, the Company's former ChairamghChief Executive Officer, and
Craig L. McKibben, a former member of our Boardifectors.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, we issuee t8htarborne Purchasers $6,096,996 in aggregat@pgaimmount at maturity of Increasing
Rate Senior Discount Notes due December 31, 20#&2‘Kotes”). The Notes had an original principalcamt totaling $5,000,000 and an
original maturity date of December 31, 2012. On ¢hat2, 2012, the maturity date of the Notes wasraatically extended under certain terms
of the Purchase Agreement to May 2, 2013.

On July 19, 2011, beneficial interest in the Nates assigned by the Sherborne Purchasers prosrttait respective investors in the manner
permitted by the Purchase Agreement. Such assignmenmade in connection with the resignation o#ts. Bramson and McKibben from
their respective positions with Nautilus on May 2611, and the subsequent pro-rata distributioodstain Sherborne-affiliated entities to their
respective investors of the common stock of Nasitiwned by such entities.

We repaid all amounts outstanding under the Nateldlarch 30, 2012. If all of the Notes were paidtloa original maturity date, the effective
rate of interest over the term of the Purchase é&ment would have been approximately 8.7% per anmthith was the rate at which interest
expense was accrued in periods preceding the repaytate. The actual effective rate of interesiugh the repayment date was approximi

6.4% per annum.

Non-Cancelable Contractual Obligations

Our operating cash flows include the effect of @i@rhon-cancelable, contractual obligations. A samnof such obligations as of
December 31, 2012 , including those related todimgontinued Commercial operation, is as followst(iousands):

Payments due by period

Less than 1 More than 5
Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Operating lease obligations $ 16,83: $ 3,36¢ $ 6,431 $ 5,37¢ $ 1,65(
Purchase obligatior¥ 1,32: 1,32: — — —
Minimum royalty obligations 25C 25( — — —
Total $ 18,40¢ $ 4,94; $ 6,43 $ 5,37¢ $ 1,65(

@ Our purchase obligations are comprised primarilineéntory purchase commitments. Because subsiigralbof our inventory is
sourced from Asia, we have long lead times ancefbes need to secure factory capacity from our venth advance.
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Due to uncertainty with respect to the timing aifie cash flows associated with our unrecognizedémefits at December 31, 2012 , we are
unable to make reasonably reliable estimates diirtiag of any cash settlements with the respedtxéng authorities. Therefore,
approximately $4.1 million of unrecognized tax béseincluding interest and penalties on uncertaipositions, have been excluded from
contractual table above. For further informatiaafer to Note 11, Income Taxes, to our consolidéitezhcial statements in Part Il, Item 8 of 1
report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business, we enter igte@ments that require us to indemnify counterpadainst third-party claims. These may
include: agreements with vendors and supplierseunthich we may indemnify them against claims aggrom our use of their products or
services; agreements with customers, under whicmageindemnify them against claims arising fromirtiuse or sale of our products; real
estate and equipment leases, under which we mayninifly lessors against third party claims relatmghe use of their property; agreements
with licensees or licensors, under which we magmdify the licensee or licensor against claimsiragi$rom their use of our intellectual
property or our use of their intellectual propedpd agreements with parties to debt arrangememtier which we may indemnify them agal
claims relating to their participation in the trangons.

The nature and terms of these indemnifications framy contract to contract, and generally a maxinabiigation is not stated. We hold
insurance policies that mitigate potential losgésirg from certain types of indemnifications. Basa we are unable to estimate our potential
obligation, and because management does not etkggset obligations to have a material adverse effectur consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows, no liabilitsee recorded at December 31, 2012 .

Seasonality

We expect our sales from fitness equipment prodoctary seasonally. Sales are typically strongesie first and fourth quarters, followed by
the third quarter, and are generally weakest irsduond quarter. We believe that various factoarsh sis the broadcast of network season
finales and seasonal weather patterns, influedeeis@n viewers and cause our advertising on caisrision stations to be less effective in
the second quarter than in other periods. In amditiuring the spring and summer months, consutaeatdsto be involved in outdoor activities,
including outdoor exercise, which impacts salemdbor fithess equipment. This seasonality can leasignificant effect on our inventory
levels, working capital needs and resource utithirat

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In the first quarter of 2012, we adopt&dcounting Standards Update No. 201 REsentation of Comprehensive Incoff&SU 2011-05"),
which revises the manner in which entities presentprehensive income in their financial statemeh&UJ 2011-05 amendments are effective
for fiscal years, and interim periods within thg®ars, beginning after December 15, 200He adoption of ASU 2011-05 did not have any
effect on our financial position, results of opéras or cash flows.

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardafiq("FASB") issued ASU 2012-0Zgsting Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for
Impairment("ASU 2012-02"), which amends the guidance in Agtng Standards Topic 350-30, Intangibles - Gooldavil Other, on testing
indefinite-lived intangible assets, other than gaeitidfor impairment. Under ASU 2012-02, entitiessting indefinite-lived intangible assets for
impairment would have the option of performing alifative assessment before calculating the fdirevaf the asset. If an entity determines,
on the basis of qualitative factors, that the inded-lived intangible asset is not more likely thaot impaired, a quantitative fair value
calculation would not be needed. The amendmentsféeetive for annual and interim impairment tgsesformed for fiscal years beginning
after September 15, 2012, although early adoptiguermitted. The adoption of ASU 2012-02 will nfieet our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013@@2nprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of AntwoReclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Inc(("ASU 2013-02"). This ASU requires an entity teclbse additional information with respect to
changes in accumulated other comprehensive inc8@E() balances by component. In addition, an grgirequired to present, either on the
face of the financial statements or in the notiggiicant amounts reclassified out of AOCI by tlespective line items of net income, but only
if the amount reclassified is required to be resifaed in its entirety in the same reporting peribdr amounts that are not required to be
reclassified in their entirety to net income, atitgris required to cross-reference to other disates that provide additional details about those
amounts. This ASU is effective for interim and aahperiods beginning after December 15, 2012 ce&shSU 2013-02 relates entirely to
disclosure, the adoption of this standard will hate any effect on our financial position, resofteperations or cash flows.

26




Table of Contents
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,812011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{Lfor the years ended December 31, 2012, 201 2@t0l
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equitytferyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the y&aided December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

27

29

I3 183 163 188
w IN W Io

34




Table of Contents
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Nautilus, Inc.
Vancouver, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Nautilus, Inc. and subsidiaries (@@nipany”) as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statesnof operations, comprehensive income (lossgkhblders' equity and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Dece®ih@012 . These financial statements are thgoresbility of the Company's management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiésancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf@qUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial position of Nautilus, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 thenaksults of their operations and their casiWdlfor each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012 , in conformity with actiogrprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedt& of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the
Company's internal control over financial reportaggof December 31, 2012 , based on the critetékshed innternal Control-Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission, and our report datedchl 7, 2013 expresse
an unqualified opinion on the Company's internaitoal over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLI

Portland, Oregon
March 7, 2013
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NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

As of December 31,

2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,20: $ 17,42
Trade receivables, net of allowances of $93 in 284@$300 in 2011 21,767 23,78(
Inventories 18,781 11,60:
Prepaids and other current assets 5,75( 4,43:
Income taxes receivable 101 454
Short-term notes receivable 82 317
Deferred income tax assets 19z 75
Total current assets 69,88’ 58,08’
Property, plant and equipment, net 6,13¢ 4,40¢
Goodwill 2,94( 2,87:
Other intangible assets, net 14,66¢ 16,71¢
Other assets 68C 732
Total assets $ 94,31: $ 82,81
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Trade payables $ 32,75! $ 28,56
Accrued liabilities 8,171 7,21¢
Warranty obligations, current portion 2,27¢ 1,80:
Deferred income tax liabilities 1,27¢ 1,06«
Total current liabilities 44,477 38,64¢
Long-term notes payable — 5,59¢
Warranty obligations, non-current 214 214
Income taxes payable, non-current 2,812 3,65¢
Deferred income tax liabilities, non-current 1,48¢ 1,43¢
Other long-term liabilities 1,99¢ 1,30¢
Total liabilities 50,98t 50,86(
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock - no par value, 75,000 shares autthr0,924 and 30,747 shares issued and outsta
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively 6,10z 5,36(
Retained earnings 36,59¢ 19,71t
Accumulated other comprehensive income 625 6,87¢
Total stockholders' equity 43,32¢ 31,95
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 94,31: $ 82,81

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net sales $ 19392t $ 180,41 $ 168,45(
Cost of sales 102,88 101,95: 91,70
Gross profit 91,03" 78,45¢ 76,74¢
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 58,61" 54,49 64,03¢
General and administrative 17,66¢ 17,14: 19,37:
Research and development 4,16: 3,22 2,90¢
Total operating expenses 80,44¢ 74,86( 86,31¢
Operating income (loss) 10,58¢ 3,59¢ (9,569
Other income (expense):
Interest income 18 65 15
Interest expense 56 (46€) (140
Other (24¢€) (11) 464
Total other (expense) income (172) (412) 33¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations before inmme taxes 10,41¢ 3,18 (9,230
Income tax (benefit) expense (22¢) 68€ 58¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations 10,64: 2,501 (9,819
Discontinued operation:
Income (loss) from discontinued operation befomme taxes 6,007 (1,06%) (12,929
Income tax (benefit) expense of discontinued opmrat (2349 16 99
Income (loss) from discontinued operation 6,241 (1,087) (13,029
Net income (loss) $ 16,88: $ 1,420 $  (22,84)
Income (loss) per share from continuing operations:
Basic $ 034 % 0.0¢ ¢ (0.32)
Diluted 0.34 0.0¢ (0.32)
Income (loss) per share from discontinued operation
Basic $ 021 % (0.0 % (0.42)
Diluted 0.21 (0.03) (0.42)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 058 % 0.0 $ (0.74)
Diluted 0.5t 0.0t (0.74
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 30,85 30,74¢ 30,74«
Diluted 30,97« 30,77¢ 30,74«

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsients
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NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net income (loss) $ 16,88 $ 1,42( $ (22,84))
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation, net of income taxn@di) expense of
($9), $8 and ($15) (83) (57%) 52C
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 16,80C 84t §  (22,32)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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Balances at January 1, 2010
Net loss

Foreign currency translation adjustment,
including income tax benefit of $15

Stock-based compensation expense
Balances at December 31, 2010
Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment,
net of income tax expense of $8

Stock-based compensation expense

Common stock issued under equity
compensation plan

Balances at December 31, 2011
Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, including income tax
benefit of $9

Reclassification of foreign currency
translation gains to income upon
substantial liquidation of subsidiaries

Stock-based compensation expense
Common stock issued under equity
compensation plan

Balances at December 31, 2012

NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Other Total
Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'

Shares Amount Earnings Income Equity
30,74« $ 4,41¢ 41,13¢ $ 6,93: $ 52,48
— — (22,847 — (22,84)
— — — 52C 52C
— 637 — — 637
30,74« 5,051 18,29 7,45 30,79¢
— — 1,42( — 1,42(
— — — (575) (575)
— 30€ — — 30¢€
3 3 — — 3
30,741 5,36( 19,71t 6,87¢ 31,95
— — 16,88: — 16,88:
— — — (83) (83
— — — (6,170) (6,170
— 63C — — 63C
177 $ 113 — — 118
30,92¢ $ 6,10: 36,59¢ $ 62t $ 43,32¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.
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Cash flows from operating activities:

NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operation

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mesthcprovided by (used in)

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debt expense (reduction)

Inventory lower-of-cost-or-market adjustments
Stock-based compensation expense

(Gain) loss on asset disposals

Reduction of previously estimated asset disposal lo
Deferred income taxes, net of valuation allowances

Reclassification of foreign currency translatiofngao income upon

substantial liquidation of subsidiaries

Changes in operating assets and
Trade receivables
Inventories

liabilities:

Prepaids and other current assets

Income taxes
Trade payables

Accrued liabilities, including warranty obligations
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of discontinued operation

Proceeds from other asset sales

Purchases of software and equipment

Net decrease in restricted cash

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings

Financing costs

Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiaémnts
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash (paid) refunded for income taxes, net

Cash paid for interest

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
$  1064: $ 2,501 $ (9,819)
6,241 (1,081) (13,029)
16,88: 1,42( (22,84))
3,26¢ 3,81¢ 6,621
(13) 15€ 48¢
402 21C 20t
63C 30€ 637
(30) 78 14¢
— 947) (3,729
14£ 431 29C
(6,170 — —
1,92¢ (4,580) 7,247
(7,579 (1,287) 6,34¢
(1,319 1,117 45¢
464 (127) 12,37:
4,18¢ 4,041 (12,620
3 (35) (6,289)
12,81: 4,59¢ (10,659
41¢ 1,30: 7,26¢
6 — 16
(2,447) (2,506) (222)
— 351 4,58:
(2,026) (852) 11,64:
— — 5,00(
(5,000) — —
— (35) (324)
112 3 —
(4,887) (32 4,67¢
(120) (58%) 1,34¢
5,78( 3,131 7,007
17,42 14,29¢ 7,28¢
$ 23200 $ 17420 $ 14,29
$ @77) % 22 $ 1245
$ (544 $ — % —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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NAUTILUS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and BusinessNautilus is a leading designer, developer anckatar of consumer fitness products sold under wsdwn brand
names such as NautillisBowflex”, Schwinn’and Universal. As used herein, the term “Nautilus” or “Compangfers to Nautilus, Inc. and
subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwiike Company's goal is to develop and markeddgrequipment and related products to hel
people enjoy healthier lives. Nautilus was founatedi986 and incorporated in the State of Washingtd®93. The Company's headquarters
are located in Vancouver, Washington.

The Company markets its products through two repdetsegments: Direct and Retail, each represeatdigtinct marketing distribution
channel. The Direct segment offers products diyeoticonsumers through direct advertising, catalgsthe Internet. The Retail segment
offers products through a network of independetaireompanies with stores located in the Uniteaté& and Canada, as well as Internet-base
merchandising.

The Company's Commercial business, formerly a tapte segment and classified as a discontinuedatiperbeginning in 2009, offered
products to health clubs, schools, hospitals ahdratrganizations. On September 25, 2009, the Coynpammitted to a plan for the complete
divestiture of its Commercial business. According@sults of operations and certain assets asedoidth the commercial business have been
presented in the consolidated financial statementdiscontinued operations for all periods presente

Basis of presentatio- The accompanying consolidated financial statemkate been prepared in accordance with accouptingiples
generally accepted in the United States of AmgfidaS. GAAP”) and relate to Nautilus, Inc. and $isbsidiaries, all of which are wholly-
owned, directly or indirectly. Intercompany trantawes and balances have been eliminated in coradagiul

Year-end- The Company's fiscal year ends on December 31.

Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in comiity with U.S. GAAP requires management to makeredes and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etgd&bilities, revenues, and expenses and gwadiure of contingent assets and liabilitie
the financial statements. Actual results couldediffom those estimates.

Concentrations- Financial instruments that potentially subje& @ompany to concentrations of credit risk conmistcipally of cash held in
bank accounts in excess of federally-insured liritd trade receivables. Trade receivables are gignansecured and therefore collection is
affected by the economic conditions in each ofG@benpany's principal markets.

Nautilus relies on thil-party contract manufacturers in Asia for substdlytiall of its products and for certain productereering support.
Business operations could be disrupted by natusakters, difficulties in transporting productsnfraon-U.S. suppliers, as well as political,
social or economic instability in the countries weontract manufacturers or their vendors or easts conduct business. While any such
contract manufacturing arrangement could be reglager time, the temporary loss of the servicesnyf primary contract manufacturer could
delay product shipments and cause a significantiplion in the Company's operations.

Nautilus derives a significant portion of its reues from a small number of its Retail customerfss of business from one or more of th
large customers, if not replaced with new businessild negatively affect the Company's operatirsylts and cash flows. In 2012 and 2011,
one customer accounted for more than 10 percenkedsithan 15 percent, of the Company's conselibla¢t sales. No individual customer
accounted for 10 percent or more of the Compamyisaidated net sales in 2010.

Cash and cash equivalentsAll highly liquid investments with remaining maities of three months or less at purchase areideresd to be
cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2012 and 2644h and cash equivalents consisted entirelgsii.c

Inventories- Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orketa with cost determined based on the firstinstfout method. The Company
establishes inventory allowances for excess, stawing and obsolete inventory based on inventorglie expected product life and forecas
sales. Inventories are written down to market vhlased on historical demand, competitive factdranges in technology and product
lifecycles.
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Property, plant and equipmer- Property, plant and equipment is stated at eatof accumulated depreciation. Improvements tebaents
which add new functionality or significantly extetiee life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditfmesnaintenance and repairs are expensed
incurred. The cost of assets retired, or otherdisposed of, and the related accumulated deprecjaire removed from the accounts at the
time of disposal. Gains and losses resulting freeetsales and dispositions are recognized inahiedoin which assets are disposed.
Depreciation is recognized, using the straight-timehod, over the lesser of the estimated usefes [of the assets or, in the case of leasehold
improvements, the lease term, including renewabpsrif the Company expects to exercise its ren@ptbns. Depreciation on furniture,
equipment and information systems is determineddas estimated useful lives, which generally rafingm three -to- five years.

Goodwill - Goodwill consists of the excess of acquisitiosts@ver the fair values of net assets acquirddiginess combinations. Nautilus
reviews goodwill for impairment in the fourth quarof each year and when events or changes innegtaunces indicate that the carrying
amount may be impaired. For this purpose, goodsvilvaluated at the reporting unit level. The Conyfsmgoodwill is an asset of its Direct
reporting unit. The Company performed a qualitatissessment of goodwill in the fourth quarters@if2and 2011 and concluded that
circumstances did not more likely than not indicateémpairment had occurred. For further informatiegarding goodwill, see Note 6,
Goodwill.

Other intangible assetsFinite-lived intangible assets, primarily acquiggatents and patent rights, are stated at casof mecumulated
amortization. The Company recognizes amortizatigrease for its finite-lived intangible assets astraight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of acgditrademarks. Indefinite-lived intangible assetsstated at cost and are not amortized;
instead, they are tested for impairment at leastially. Nautilus reviews its acquired trademarksifigpairment in the fourth quarter of each
year and when events or changes in circumstandestie that the assets may be impaired. The fhievaf trademarks is estimated using
relief from royalty approach, a standard form afodiunted cash flow analysis used in the valuatidrademarks. If the carrying amount of
trademarks exceeds the estimated fair value, tlmep@oy calculates impairment as the excess of caygmount over the estimate of fair va
Nautilus tested its acquired trademarks for impaintrin the fourth quarters of 2012 and 2011 andrdghed that no impairment was indical
For further information regarding other intangibsets, see Note 7, Other Intangible Assets.

Impairment of lon¢-lived assets Long-lived assets, including property, plant aedipment, and finite-lived intangible assets, udahg

patents and patent rights, are evaluated for impait when events or circumstances indicate thgiogrvalue may be impaired. When suct
event or condition occurs, Nautilus estimates tharé undiscounted cash flows to be derived froenutbe and eventual disposition of the asse
to determine whether a potential impairment exi$the carrying value exceeds estimated futuresaminted cash flows, the Company
records impairment expense to reduce the carryahgevof the asset to its estimated fair value.

Revenue recognitiol- Direct and Retail product sales and shipping mexes are recorded when products are shipped éngdises to
customers. In most instances, Retail sales to metare made pursuant to a sales contract thétpsofor transfer of both title and risk of
loss to the customer upon our delivery to the earfRevenue is recognized net of applicable salemtives, such as promotional discounts,
rebates and return allowances. The Company estrtaaevenue impact of incentive programs basati@planned duration of the program
and historical experience. If the amount of sategmtives is reasonably estimable, the impact cf sncentives is recorded at the later of the
time the customer is notified of the sales incentiv the time of the sale. The Company estimasdgahility for product returns based on
historical experience and records the expectedatitin as a reduction of revenue. If actual retirsts differ from previous estimates, the
amount of the liability and corresponding reventesadjusted in the period in which such costs accur

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are recorded on a net basi®acluded from revenue. Shipping and
handling fees billed to customers are recordedsgaosl included in both revenue and cost of salesmyMlirect business customers finance
purchases through a third-party credit providerwhich Nautilus pays a commission or financing tie¢he credit provider. Revenue for such
transactions is recognized based on the sales@ranged to the customer and the related commissifinancing fee is included in selling and
marketing expense.

Cost of sales Cost of sales primarily consists of: inventongisp royalties paid to third parties; employmerd ancupancy costs of warehouse
and distribution facilities, including depreciatiohimprovements and equipment; transportation Bges; product warranty expenses;
distribution information systems expenses; anccalied expenses for shared administrative functions.

Product warranty obligations The Company's products carry limited, definedrasmties for defects in materials or workmanshipahhi
according to their terms, generally obligate Naustiio pay the costs of supplying and shipping
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replacement parts to customers and, in certaianess, pay for labor and other costs to servicduymts. Outstanding product warranty periods
range from sixty days to, in limited circumstandég, lifetime of certain product components. Thenpany records a liability at the time of
sale for the estimated costs of fulfilling futuramanty claims. If necessary, the Company adjestigbility for specific warranty-related
matters when they become known and are reasonstilyable. Estimated warranty expense is includezbst of sales, based on historical
warranty claim experience and available productityudata. Warranty expense is affected by theqgrarince of new products, significant
manufacturing or design defects not discovered aftér the product is delivered to the customendpct failure rates, and higher or lower t
expected repair costs. If warranty expense difiens previous estimates, or if circumstances chaugh that the assumptions inherent in
previous estimates are no longer valid, the amofiptoduct warranty liability is adjusted according-or further information regarding
product warranty obligations, see Note 9, Produatndhties.

Litigation and loss contingencie- From time to time, the Company may be involvedanious claims, lawsuits and other proceedingshSu
litigation involves uncertainty as to the eventoatcomes and losses which may be realized whewom®re future events occur or fail to
occur. Nautilus records expenses for litigation brss$ contingencies when it is probable that dlitgthas been incurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. The Companyadstithe probability of such losses based on thie@df internal and external counsel, the
outcomes from similar litigation, the status of thersuits (including settlement initiatives), ldgisve developments and other factors. Due to
the numerous variables associated with these judgnaad assumptions, both the precision and rétiabf the resulting estimates of the
related loss contingencies are subject to subatamicertainties. The Company regularly monitass#timated exposure to these contingencie
and, as additional information becomes known, ntenge its estimates accordingly. For further infation regarding litigation and loss
contingencies, see Note 15, Commitments and Caariirigs.

Advertising and promotior- Nautilus expenses its advertising and promotimstsas incurred. Production costs of televisioregising
commercials are recorded as prepaid expenseshmiiitial broadcast, at which time such costsexgensed. Advertising and promotion ct
are included in selling and marketing expensesalTaatvertising and promotion expenses were $30l#bmj $28.6 million and $40.6 million
for the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 ab@ 2@spectively. Prepaid advertising and pronmotiasts were $1.3 million and $0.8
million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respelsti

Research and developme- Internal research and development costs, whitchapily consist of salaries and wages, employeefisn
expenditures for materials, and fees to use licktesehnologies, are expensed as incurred. Thiny pasearch and development costs for
products under development or being researchagyifare expensed as the contracted work is peefhrm

Income taxes Nautilus accounts for income taxes based ondbetand liability method, whereby deferred taxetssand liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences ataiilatto differences between the financial stateroanying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Defitex assets and liabilities are measured usingriheted tax rates expected to be in effect whe
the temporary differences are expected to be imcluds income or expense, in the applicable taxmeThe effect of a change in tax rates on
deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognipetthé period of the enactment. Valuation allowararesprovided against deferred income tax
assets if the Company determines it is more likeén not that such assets will not be realized.

The Company recognizes a tax benefit from an uaitetax position when it is more likely than noathhe position will be sustained based on
the technical merits of the position upon examaratincluding resolutions of any related appealktigation.

Foreign currency translation Nautilus translates the accounts of its non-dubsidiaries into U.S. dollars as follows: reven@apenses,
gains and losses are translated at weightestage exchange rates during the year; and aswtibilities are translated at the exchangeas
the balance sheet date. Translation gains andsl@ssaeported in the Company's consolidated balaheets as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income in stockholders' eglntthe fourth quarter of 2012, the Company suligthy completed the liquidation of its
investment in foreign subsidiaries formerly asswaiavith the Commercial business. As a result,cumulated translation adjustment of $6.2
million was removed from accumulated other compnshe income and recognized as a gain of the disaed operation.

Gains and losses arising from foreign currencysaations, including transactions between the Compad its non-U.S. subsidiaries, are
recorded as a component of other income (expengbgiCompany's consolidated statements of opagatio

Fair value of financial instruments- Financial instruments include cash and cash edgiivs, trade receivables, trade payables, lomy-tate
payable, letters of credit and guarantees entatedn the ordinary course of business. The cagyin
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amounts reflected in the Company's consolidateanzal sheets approximate fair value due to theikebaates of interest and/or short-term
maturities.

Stocl-based compensationNautilus recognizes stock-based compensationnsepen a straight-line basis over the applicab#tinvg period,
based on the grant-date fair value of the awardh&extent a stock-based award is subject to pedoce conditions, the amount of expense
recorded in a given period, if any, reflects oweasment of the probability of achieving the penfance targets.

Fair value of stock options is estimated usingBleek-Scholes-Merton option valuation model; faddue of performance share unit awards is
estimated using the binomial valuation model; Yailue of restricted stock unit awards is basecherctosing market price on the day prece
the grant. Assumptions used in calculating theviaiue of stock-option grants in the years endedeber 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows

2012 2011 2010
Dividend yield —% —% —%
Risk-free interest rate 0.S% 1.5% 2.2%
Expected life (years) 4.7t 4.7t 4.7t
Expected volatility 92% 92% 90%

Expected dividend yieis based on the Company's current expectatiomthdtvidend payments will be made in future periods

Risk-free interest ratés the U.S. Treasury zero-coupon rate, as of thatgtate, for issues having a term approximatelyaktp the expected
life of the stock option.

Expected lifds the period of time over which stock options @xpected to remain outstanding. The Company caésilxpected term based
the average of the sum of the vesting periods la@duil contractual term.

Expected volatilitis the percentage amount by which the price of iNeutommon stock is expected to fluctuate annuddising the estimated
expected life for stock options. Expected priceatibty is calculated using historical daily clogiprices over a period matching the weighted-
average expected life, as management believeschactyes are the best indicator of future volatility

The Company estimates future forfeitures, at tme tof grant and in subsequent periods, based torice turnover rates, previous forfeiture
experience and changes in the business or keyrpessthat would suggest future forfeitures mayatifrom historical data. The Company
recognizes compensation expense for only thosé& sfations and stock-based awards that are expéxteest. The Company reevaluates
estimated forfeitures each quarter and, if applesalecognizes a cumulative effect adjustment éngeriod of the change if the revised estimat
of the impact of forfeitures differs significantisom the previous estimate.

Related party transaction- In September 2010 , the Company entered intgyegeanent to borrow $5.0 million from certain emttiunder
common control of Sherborne Investors GP, LLC asdffiliates (collectively “Sherborne”). At therte, Sherborne was the Company's large:
shareholder and was controlled by Edward J. BranthenCompany's former Chairman and Chief Execu@iffecer, and Craig L. McKibben,
former member of the Company's Board of Direct®ree Company incurred interest expense of $0.4oniliind $0.1 million with respect to
such debt in 2011 and 2010 , respectively. The Gompepaid all amounts outstanding with respesutth debt in March 2012 and,
accordingly, both the outstanding principal balaand amount of accrued interest expense as of DmreBd, 2012 were zero . As of
December 31, 2011 , the outstanding principal lwadarf $5.0 million and accrued interest expensk0dd million is included in long-term
notes payable in the Company's consolidated balsimeets. For further information, see Note 10, 8eings.

New Accounting Pronouncemen- In the first quarter of 2012, the Company adogtedounting Standards Update No. 201 PREsentation

of Comprehensive InconfASU 2011-05"), which revises the manner in whégttities present comprehensive income in theimfiie
statements. ASU 2011-05 amendments are effectiviésial years, and interim periods within thosange beginning after December 15, 2011
The adoption of ASU 2011-05 did not have any eftecthe Company's financial position, results aéragions or cash flows.

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardafiq("FASB") issued ASU 2012-0Zgsting Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for
Impairment("ASU 2012-02"), which amends the guidance in Actmg Standards Topic 350-30, Intangibles -
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Goodwill and Other, on testing indefinite-livedangible assets, other than goodwill, for impairméhitder ASU 2012-02, entities testing
indefinitedived intangible assets for impairment would hawve option of performing a qualitative assessmefarbecalculating the fair value
the asset. If an entity determines, on the basigiafitative factors, that the indefinite-livedangible asset is not more likely than not impairec
a quantitative fair value calculation would notrieeded. The amendments are effective for annuahéerim impairment tests performed for
fiscal years beginning after September 15, 201Bpagh early adoption is permitted. The adoptioAST 2012-02 will not affect the
Company's financial position, results of operationsash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013@#nprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of AnteoReclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Inc(("ASU 2013-02"). This ASU requires an entity teclbse additional information with respect to
changes in accumulated other comprehensive incB®@€E) balances by component. In addition, an grigirequired to present, either on the
face of the financial statements or in the notiggificant amounts reclassified out of AOCI by tlespective line items of net income, but only
if the amount reclassified is required to be resifaed in its entirety in the same reporting peridr amounts that are not required to be
reclassified in their entirety to net income, afitgns required to cross-reference to other disates that provide additional details about those
amounts. This ASU is effective for interim and aahperiods beginning after December 15, 2012 ce&SASU 2013-02 relates entirely to
disclosure, the adoption of this standard will have any effect on the Company's financial positieaults of operations or cash flows.

(2) DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On September 25, 2009, in light of continuing opatplosses in its Commercial business and in oréocus exclusively on managing its
Direct and Retail consumer businesses, the Compamynitted to a plan for the complete divestituré®fCommercial business, which
qualified for held-for-sale accounting treatmertte TCommercial business is presented as a discedtioperation in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations for all ydeslowing is a summary of the operating resuftthe Company's former Commercial
business for the years ended December 31, 201P1, &td 2010 (in thousands):

2012 2011 2010

Revenue $ — % 86 $ 12,59:
Operating income (loss) before income taxes $ (163 $ (2,01 % (16,64
Reclassification of foreign currency translationngao income upon
substantial liquidation of subsidiaries 6,17( — —
Reduction of previously-estimated disposal loss — 94¢€ 3,72
Income tax benefit (expense) 234 (16) (99

Total income (loss) from discontinued operation $ 6,241 (1,08) % (13,029

Disposal of Commercial business assets was condplet&pril 2011. In the fourth quarter of 2012, tBempany substantially completed the
liquidation of its investment in foreign subsidiesiformerly associated with the Commercial busin&ss result, an accumulated translation
adjustment of $6.2 million was removed as a sepamamnponent of equity and recognized as a gaiheofliscontinued operation. The
Company may incur additional expenses in futuréoglerin connection with the settlement of contingjes arising from and directly related to
the Commercial business prior to its disposal.fEgher information regarding contingencies relai@the Company's former Commercial
business, see Note 15, Commitments and Contingencie

The following table presents gain or (loss) recagdion completed disposal transactions for thesyeatled December 31, 2012 , 2011 and
2010 (in thousands):

Estimated Disposal Reduction of Disposal Loss
Loss Gain (Loss) on Previously- Impairment
as of Completed Disposi  Estimated Disposal as of
January 1 Transactions Loss December 31
2010 $ (10,266) $ 5,87 % 3,72:  $ (66€)
2011 (66€) 28C 94¢€ —

2012 — — — —
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The following table summarizes liabilities for eritsts related to discontinued operations, includééccrued liabilities" and "Other long-
term liabilities" in the Company's consolidatedarmale sheets (in thousands):

Severance Lease Total
and Benefits Obligations Liabilities
Balance as of December 31, 2010 47€ 2,16( 2,63¢
Accruals 17t 217 39z
Payments (47¢) (44¢) (929
Balance as of December 31, 2011 17t 1,92¢ 2,10¢
Accruals — (390) (390
Payments (175) (421 (596
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ — $ 1118 0§ 11k

(3) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Changes in the Company's allowance for doubtfdengceivables in the years ended December 31,,220P1 and 2010 were as follows (in
thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Balance, January 1 $ 30C % 301 % 4,16(
Charges to (reversals of) bad debt expense a3 15€ 48¢€
Writeoffs, net of recoveries (199 (157) (4,345
Balance, December 31 $ 93 $ 30C $ 301

Writeoffs, net of recoveries, in 2010 primarily cisted of uncollectible trade receivables of thenpany's former Commercial business.

(4) INVENTORIES

Inventories, net, as of December 31, 2012 and 20hsisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2012 2011
Finished goods $ 17,14¢ % 9,83:
Parts and components 1,63¢ 1,76¢
Total inventories $ 18,781  § 11,60:

Valuation allowances, primarily related to exceaginventories, as of December 31, 2012 and 2&t# as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2012 2011
Inventory valuation allowances $ 1,011  $ 1,03
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(5) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment as of December 312 20d 2011 consisted of the following (in thousgnd

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life
(in years) 2012 2011
Leasehold improvements 5to 20 $ 2,86°¢ $ 2,657
Computer equipment 3to5 36,107 36,87:
Machinery and equipment 3to5 5,35¢ 4,75¢
Furniture and fixtures 5 87C 66€
Work in progress N/A 2,08( 1,931
Total cost 47,27¢ 46,79:
Accumulated depreciation (41,14 (42,38¢)
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 6,13¢ $ 4,40t

Work in progress includes internal use softwareettjyment and production tooling construction ingress.
Depreciation expense was $1.2 million , $1.6 millamd $4.5 million in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , retipely.
(6) GOODWILL

No goodwill is assigned to the Retail reportingtu@hanges in goodwill of the Direct reporting unithe years endeDecember 31, 2012 and
2011 were as follows (in thousands):

Goodwill
Balance, January 1, 2011 $ 2,931
Currency exchange rate adjustment (58
Balance, December 31, 2011 2,87:
Currency exchange rate adjustment 67
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 2,94(

(7) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2012 and @disted of the following (in thousands):

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life
(in years) 2012 2011
Indefinite life trademarks N/A $ 9,052 $ 9,052
Patents 8 to 16 18,15« 18,15¢
Total cost 27,20¢ 27,20¢
Accumulated amortization - patents (12,540 (10,490
Total other intangible assets, net $ 14666 $ 16,71

Amortization expense for intangible assets was ##llion for each of the years ended December 8122 2011 and 2010 . Amortization
expense for intangible assets is expected to bezippately $2.1 million in 2013 and $2.0 million 2014 , with the remaining $1.5 million
amortized over the six-year period from 2015 thio2§20.
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(8) ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and12€dnsisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2012 2011
Exit costs of discontinued operation $ 34C $ 79¢€
Payroll and benefits 3,32 2,38¢
Royalties 1,06: 821
Legal and professional fees 834 82t
Other 2,607 2,381
Total accrued liabilities $ 8,171 $ 7,21t

(9) PRODUCT WARRANTIES

Changes in the Company's product warranty liabititthe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011asei@lows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Balance, January 1 $ 2,017 $ 3,93t
Accruals 2,61¢ 1,78¢
Adjustments (170 (660)
Payments (2,970 (3,047%)
Balance, December 31 $ 249: § 2,01%

Product warranty payments in 2012 and 2011 primaeilated to retained obligations of the Compafgrsier Commercial business. Product
warranty liability adjustments in 2011 primariljlaged to the assignment of certain outstanding Ceroial warranty obligations to the buyer
of certain components of the Commercial businessoffDecember 31, 2012 and 2011 , total outstanoliigations of the Company's former
Commercial business included in product warrarability were $0.4 million and $0.6 million , respieely.

(10) BORROWINGS

The Company has a Credit Agreement (the "Loan Agese”) with Bank of the West that, as amended asthted on March 30, 2012,
provides for a $15,750,000 maximum revolving seduredit line. The line of credit is available thgh March 31, 2015 for working capital,
standby letters of credit and general corporatpgres. Borrowing availability under the Loan Agresitns subject to the Company's
compliance with certain financial and operatingemants at the time borrowings are requested. Syaetters of credit under the Loan
Agreement are treated as a reduction of the aveiladrrowing amount and are subject to covenatintes

The interest rate applicable to borrowings underliban Agreement is based on either, at the Conmpdigcretion, Bank of the West's base
rate, a floating rate or LIBOR , plus an applicatnlargin based on certain Company financial perfoiceanetrics. The Company's borrowing
rate was 2.00% as of December 31, 2012 . The L@maeinent contains customary covenants, includimgnmim fixed charge coverage ratio
and leverage ratio, and limitations on capital exjieires, mergers and acquisitions, indebtedniesss, Idispositions, dividends and
investments. The Loan Agreement also contains mestp events of default. Upon an event of defah#, lender has the option of terminating
its commitment with respect to the credit line aedelerating all obligations under the Loan AgresmBorrowings under the Loan Agreem
are collateralized by substantially all of the Camy's assets, including intellectual property asset

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company had no awdstg borrowings and $1.0 million in standby ledtef credit issued under the Loan
Agreement. As of December 31, 2012 , the Compars/iwaompliance with the financial covenants of lth@an Agreement and approximately
$14.8 million was available for borrowing.
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On September 3, 2010, the Company entered intat@ Rlarchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreemuiitfi)certain entities (collectively, tt
“Sherborne Purchasers”) under common control ofi&irae Investors GP, LLC and its affiliates (cdlieely “Sherborne”). Sherborne was
formerly the Company's largest shareholder andrgrolled by Edward J. Bramson, the Company's for@teirman and Chief Executive
Officer, and Craig L. McKibben, a former membeitleé Company's Board of Directors.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Compaungdde the Sherborne Purchasers $6,096,996 ingafgrprincipal amount at maturity of
Increasing Rate Senior Discount Notes due DeceBhe2012 (the “Notes”). The Notes had an originaig@pal amount totaling $5,000,000
and an original maturity date of December 31, 2@r2March 12, 2012, the maturity date of the Netas automatically extended under
certain terms of the Purchase Agreement to May232

On July 19, 2011, beneficial interest in the Nates assigned by the Sherborne Purchasers prosrttait respective investors in the manner
permitted by the Purchase Agreement. Such assignmenmade in connection with the resignation o#ts. Bramson and McKibben from
their respective positions with Nautilus on May 2611, and the subsequent pro-rata distributioodstain Sherborne-affiliated entities to their
respective investors of the common stock of the amg owned by such entities.

The Company repaid all amounts outstanding undeNtites on March 30, 2012. If all of the Notes wgai on the original maturity date, the
effective rate of interest over the term of thedhase Agreement would have been approximately @&1%nnum, which was the rate at which
interest expense was accrued by the Company ingsepreceding the repayment date. The actual eféectte of interest through the
repayment date was approximately 6.4% per annum.

(11) INCOME TAXES

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes for the years ended December 31, 20021, @1d 2010 consisted of the
following (in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
United States $ 10,02t 2,87¢ (12,07
Non-U.S. 391 311 1,841
Total income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes $ 10,41¢ 3,18 (9,230)

Income tax (benefit) expense for continuing operstifor the years ended December 31, 2012 , 204 2@t0 consisted of the following (in

thousands):
2012 2011 2010
Current:
U.S. federal $ (579 17z (349
U.S. state 53 26 26
Non-U.S. 15t 77 65€
Total current (3717) 27¢ 333
Deferred:
U.S. federal 177 314 202
U.S. state 17 27 17
Non-U.S. (49 7C 36
Total deferred 14¢ 411 25k
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ (22¢€) 68¢€ 58¢
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The tax effect of deferred income tax assets adiiliies arising from temporary differences andg@rwards as of December 31, 2012 and
2011 was as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2012 2011
Deferred income tax assets:
Accrued liabilities $ 3312 % 2,70z
Allowance for doubtful accounts 21 27
Inventory valuation 382 38¢
Capitalized indirect inventory costs 207 18z
Stock-based compensation expense 612 721
Net operating loss carryforward 40,54( 39,77"
Basis difference on assets held-for-sale — 1,821
Capital loss carryforward 4,31¢ 4,31¢
Basis difference on long-lived assets 5,78: 8,33:
Other 3,56 3,311
Total deferred income tax assets before valuatiowance 58,73t 61,58¢
Valuation allowance (57,230) (60,32¢)
Total deferred income tax assets, net of valuaitowance 1,50¢ 1,26(
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Prepaid advertising (387) (287)
Other prepaids (320) (311
Basis difference on long-lived assets (2,679 (2,409
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries (13¢) (89)
Other (319 (28¢)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (3,839 (3,389
Net deferred income tax liability $ (2326 % (2,129

Net deferred income tax liability in the Compamydmsolidated balance sheets aDecember 31, 2012 and 2011 consisted of the fotigwin
thousands):

December 31,

2012 2011
Current deferred income tax assets $ 19 % 75
Current deferred income tax liabilities (1,275 (1,069
Non-current deferred income tax assets, includé®ther assets” 24C 29¢
Non-current deferred income tax liabilities (1,489 (1,439
Net deferred income tax liability $ (232 % (2,129
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Following is a reconciliation of the U.S. statutdegleral income tax rate with the Company's eféectincome tax rate for continuing operatit
for the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 ah@d 20

2012 2011 2010

U.S. statutory income tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State tax, net of U.S. federal tax benefit 1.1 5.2 2.2
Nondeductible incentive stock option expense — — 0.2
Non-U.S. income taxes — 2.1 13.1
Effect of double taxation dividend received — — (13.6
Nondeductible operating expenses 04 (1.8 (0.7
Research and development credit — (2.6) —
Change in deferred tax measurement rate 0.1 0.3 0.3
Change in uncertain tax positions (6.5) 13.C (1.0
Valuation allowance (32.9 (29.0 (40.9
Other — (0.7) 2.9

Effective income tax rate for continuing operations (2.29% 21.5% (6.49%

Nautilus periodically evaluates the potential rzation of its deferred income tax assets and,dgéssary, records a valuation allowanc

reduce the net carrying value of such assets tartfmint expected to be realized. As part of théeasment, the Company considers positive
and negative evidence, including cumulative incamkoss for the past three years and forecasteabteincome. Nautilus evaluated the
potential realization of deferred income tax asastef December 31, 2012 and 2011 and concludddtihaluation allowance was required. |
is at least reasonably possible that, within thd teelve months, a review of the objective evidentay indicate that a portion of the
Company's valuation allowance is no longer appeteri If such a determination is made, releashef/aluation allowance would be
recognized as an income tax benefit to continujpgrations in the period in which such assessmenaie and the amount recognized cou
material.

The amount of valuation allowance offsetting tharpany's deferred income tax assets was $57.2 mélia $60.3 million as ddecember 31
2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Nautilus has net operating loss, capital loss andme tax credit carryforwards in various jurisidios, all of which are fully offset by valuati
allowances and are available to offset future thxattome, if any. The timing and manner in whibh Company is permitted to utilize its net
operating loss carryforwards may be limited by in& Revenue Code Section 38&nitation on Net Operating Loss Carry-forwards and
Certain Built-in-Losses Following Ownership Change

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company had theviatig income tax carryforwards (in millions):

Amount Expires in

Net operating loss carryforwards:

Federal $ 75.C 2029 - 2031

State 104.( 2013 - 2031

Germany 11t Indefinite

Switzerland 26.C 2014 - 2019

China 3.7 2013 - 2016

Italy 2.€ 2013 - 2017
Federal capital loss carryforward 11.2 2013
Income tax credit carryforwards:

Federal 2.7 2018 - 2031

State 0.4 2019 - 2022
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Under accounting guidance, an uncertain tax posigpresents the Company's expected treatmentaaffosition taken in a filed tax return,
planned to be taken in a future tax return, thatrat been reflected in measuring income tax expéndinancial reporting purposes.
Following is a reconciliation of gross unrecognizax benefits from uncertain tax positions (exahggdihe impact of penalties and interest) for
the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 20flb(sands):

2012 2011 2010
Unrecognized tax benefits, beginning of year $ 437¢ % 334: % 3,24¢
Additions for tax positions taken in prior years — 1,015 52
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior years (972) — (75)
Additions for tax positions related to the currgear — 73 12t
Lapses of statutes of limitations (874) (56) 9
Unrecognized tax benefits, end of year $ 253C % 437¢  $ 3,34-

Of the $2.5 million of gross unrecognized tax béadfom uncertain tax positions outstanding aBetember 31, 2012 , $1.2 million would, if
recognized, affect the Company's effective tax. rate

The Company recognizes tax-related interest andlppesias a component of income tax expense. Thep@oy had a cumulative liability for
interest and penalties related to uncertain taitipas as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 of $1.68amiand $1.6 million , respectively.

The Company's U.S. federal income tax returns @@92hrough 2012 are open to review by the U.®riv@l Revenue Service. The Company"
state income tax returns for 2006 through 2012pemn to review, depending on the respective stafteitation in each state. In addition, 1
Company files income tax returns in several non-{lfsdictions with varying statutes of limitation

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company believesriégasonably likely that, within the next 12 mont3.3 millionof previously unrecognize
tax benefits related to certain U.S. and non-Ul&gfpositions will be recognized as statutesiwiiiation expire.

(12) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company had 75.0amifluthorized shares of common stock, no par yalihich 30.9 million shares were
issued and outstanding and 1.7 million shares ve=erved for future issuance under its equity carsaton plans.

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

In 2005 Nautilus shareholders approved the 2005tTerm Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”) to enhatlheeCompany's ability to attract and
retain highly qualified personnel and align theddrarm interests of participants with those of shareholders. The 2005 Plan, which is
administered by the Company's Compensation Conenitt¢he Board of Directors, authorizes the Companyrant various types of stock-
based awards including: stock options, stock agtien rights, restricted stock, stock units andqgrenance stock grants. Stock options
granted under the 2005 Plan shall not have an isegpeice less than the fair market value of then@any's common shares on the date of the
grant. The exercise price of an option or stockagiption right may not be reduced without sharééobpproval. Stock options generally vest
over periods of three or four years of continucervise, commencing on the date of grant. Stockoogtgranted after the adoption of the 2005
Plan have a seven -year contractual term. Stodgkropgranted under the preceding plan expire tdteyears.

Upon its adoption, there were approximately 4.0ianilshares available for issuance under the 20&%. Fhe number of shares available for
issuance is increased by any shares of common atioick were previously reserved for issuance utitkeiCompany's preceding stock option
plan, and were not subject to grant on June 6, 2008s to which the stock based compensation awwdodfeited on or after June 6, 2005. The
number of shares available for issuance is redbygdd two shares for each share delivered irlesaint of any stock appreciation rights, for
each share of restricted stock, and for each sioitlor performance unit award, and (i) one sHaresach share delivered in settlement of a
stock option award. In no event shall more thamiillon aggregate shares of common stock subject to sfoadns, stock appreciation righ
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restricted stock or performance stock unit awaelgianted to any one participant in any one yedeuthe 2005 Plan. As of December 31,
2012, 3.8 million shares remained available fourfe grant under the 2005 Plan.

The Company receives income tax deductions asuét iéthe exercise of certain stock options ansting of restricted stock units and
performance stock units. Stock-based compensatipanse, primarily included in general and administe expense, for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was as follawth@usands):

2012 2011 2010
Stock options $ 35t $ 26 $ 553
Restricted stock units 18¢ 15C —
Performance stock units 87 13C 84
Total $ 63C 30¢€ 637

Stock Options

Stock option activity for the years ended Decen®igr2012 , 2011 and 20¥@as as follows (in thousands, except exercise pmckcontractui
life):

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Total Exercise Contractual Life Value
Shares Price (in years) ($000s)

Options outstanding, January 1, 2010 1,414 $ 10.5C
Granted 25¢ 2.7:
Forfeited, canceled or expired (472) 10.3¢
Exercised — —

Options outstanding, December 31, 2010 1,20( 8.8( 43 % 22
Options outstanding, January 1, 2011 1,20¢ 8.8(
Granted 124 2.6¢
Forfeited, canceled or expired (287) 6.52
Exercised (©) 1.6€

Options outstanding, December 31, 2011 1,03/ 8.72 3.2 18
Options outstanding, January 1, 2012 1,03¢ 8.7z
Granted 38¢€ 2.74
Forfeited, canceled or expired (18%) 9.4:
Exercised (51) 2.2¢4
Options outstanding, December 31, 2012 1,18¢ 6.92 4.1 59¢
Vested and expected to vest, as of December 31,201 1,18¢ 6.92 4.1 59¢

Aggregate intrinsic value in the above table repnésthe aggregate amount, for all options, by wklosing share prices exceed the exercise
price of the stock options. This value will fluctaan the future based on the fair market valuewfcommon stock.

The weighted average grant-date fair values okstptions granted during the years ended Decenthe2@®L2 , 2011 and 2010 were $1.89 ,

$1.86 and $1.89 , respectively. As of Decembe2B12 , compensation expense for unvested stockraptias approximately $0.5 million ,
which is expected to be recognized over a weightedlage period of 1.8 years.
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Stock options outstanding as of December 31, 204r2 as follows: (in thousands, except contractteabhd exercise price):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted- Weighted-

Remaining Average Number of Average

Number of Options Contractual Exercise Options Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life (Years) Price Exercisable Price
$1.07 - $2.72 362 6.7 $ 2.3¢ 88 $ 1.9¢
$2.77 - $2.99 314 54 2.91 88 2.9¢
$3.08 - $14.25 252 1.9 7.2¢ 24¢ 7.3z
$15.15 - $23.15 251 1.1 17.7¢ 251 17.7¢
$23.64 - $26.77 5 2.3 25.4¢ 5 25.4¢
$1.07 - $26.77 1,18/ 4.1 6.92 68( 10.0€

Restricted Stock Unit

Following is a summary of restricted stock unittt for the years ended December 31, 2012 , 281id 2010 (in thousands, except fair value
per share):

Weighted Average
Restricted Grant Date Fair
Stock Units Value per Share
Restricted stock units outstanding, January 1, 2010 — $ =
Granted — —
Restricted stock units outstanding, December 31020 — —
Granted 37¢ 2.6(
Restricted stock units outstanding, December 31, 2Q 37t 2.6(
Granted —
Forfeited (59 2.6(
Vested (137) 2.6(
Restricted stock units outstanding, December 31, 2@ 17¢ 2.6(

Performance Stock Unit:

In April 2010 the Company granted performance stotk awards to key members of its executive teBine. performance stock unit awards
subject to both time-based vesting (one-third aliymoaer three years) and achievement of a stoeparget of two times the grant date price
If, over the three-year period, the stock pricesdoet close at or above two times the grant date pwver any 20 of 30 consecutive days, the
entire award is forfeited. Compensation expens@ésformance stock unit grants is recognized dverestimated requisite service period b
on the number of performance stock units ultimaéxpected to vest.

In February and August 2012, the Company grantefimeance stock unit awards to certain of the Camgfsaexecutive officers. The
performance stock unit awards vest based on aahieweof certain operating income and return ontagsals established for a three year
performance period. The number of shares vestedrihd performance unit awards following conclusibthe performance period will be
determined based on the level at which the findigmials are achieved. The number of shares vestingange from 60% of the performance
unit awards if minimum thresholds are achieved moaximum of 150%.
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Following is a summary of performance stock unthaty for the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2&1d 2010 (in thousands, except fair
value per share):

Weighted Average

Performance Grant Date Fair

Stock Units Value per Share
Performance stock units outstanding, January 10 201 — $ —
Granted 14¢€ 2.32
Performance stock units outstanding, December @10 2 14¢€ 2.32
Canceled (73 2.3
Performance stock units outstanding, December 31021 73 2.3
Granted 82 2.7¢
Canceled (23 2.47
Performance stock units outstanding, December 31022 132 2.5¢

(13) INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic income (loss) per share was computed usmgvélighted average number of common shares ouistarteébr the computation of diluted

income (loss) per share, the number of basic wetghverage shares outstanding was increased biyeihotential common shares related to
stock-based compensation, as determined by theumeatock method. The weighted average numbeshaes outstanding used to compute
income (loss) per share were as follows:

As of December 31,

(Number of shares in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 30,85! 30,74¢ 30,74
Dilutive potential common shares 12z 30 — @
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 30,97« 30,77¢ 30,74+
@ Dilutive potential shares omitted due to net loss 26

The weighted average numbers of shares outstatidiad in the table below were anti-dilutive anatlexied from the computation of diluted
income (loss) per share, primarily because theaaemarket price did not exceed the exercise prisese shares may be dilutive potential
common shares in the future.

As of December 31,

(Number of shares in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Stock options 1,07z 1,11/ 1,25
Performance stock units 26 89 —
Restricted stock units — 217 —

(14) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments - DiretRagtail. Contribution is the measure of profilass used by the Company's chief
operating decision maker and is defined as nes$ $a$s product costs and directly attributable rgps. Directly attributable expenses include
selling and marketing expenses, general and admatiie expenses, and research and developmemsagéhat are directly related to segr
operations. Segment assets are those directlynasbtg an operating segment's operations, primaciypunts receivable, inventories and
intangible assets. Unallocated assets primariljpdeshared information technology infrastructaietribution centers, corporate headquarter:
prepaids, deferred taxes and other assets. Capjiahditures directly attributable to the Directl &etail segments were not significant in any
year.
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Following is summary information by reportable segtfor the years ended December 31, 2012 , 204 2@10 (in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Net sales:
Direct $ 12497¢  $ 107,06. $ 96,66¢
Retail 63,89: 68,59: 67,78¢
Unallocated royalty income 5,057 4,76( 3,99¢
Consolidated net sales $ 193,92t $ 180,41: $ 168,45(
Contribution:
Direct $ 12,47¢  $ 295 % (20,77%)
Retail 7,85k 9,48¢ 11,40(
Unallocated royalty income 5,05i 4,76( 3,99
Consolidated contribution $ 2539 $ 17,200 $ 4,61¢
Reconciliation of consolidated contribution to incone (loss)
from continuing operations:
Consolidated contribution $ 2539 $ 17,200 $ 4,61¢
Less:
Selling and marketing — — (6)
General and administrative (14,757) (13,509 (14,097
Research and development (49 (103) (86)
Interest income (expense), net 73 (401) (240
Other income (expense), net (247) (12) 47¢
Income tax benefit (expense) 22¢ (68€) (58¢)
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 10,64: $ 2,501 % (9,819
Assets:
Direct $ 22,34¢ % 23,24 % 17,34¢
Retail 27,84 26,33: 31,08
Unallocated corporate 44,11¢ 33,23¢ 29,93¢
Total assets $ 94,31: % 82,81 % 78,36
Depreciation and amortization expense:
Direct $ 2,366 % 2,74. $ 4,00(
Retail 82t 844 2,22¢
Unallocated corporate 78 22¢ 401
Total depreciation and amortization expense $ 326¢ % 381 % 6,621

Net sales outside of the United States, primanilZanada, represented approximal3% , 9% and 10% of consolidated net sales foy&aes
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 , resphctiv

(15) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

The Company leases property and equipment undecaocelable operating leases which, in the aggeegatend through 2019. Many of
these leases contain renewal options and providef escalations and payment of real estate taxaimtenance, insurance and certain other

operating expenses of the properties. Rent expemder all operating leases was $3.2 million , $8illon and $3.9 millionfor the years ende
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 , respectively.
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As of December 31, 2012 , future minimum lease pEymunder nogancelable operating leases, reduced for subleasene, were as follov
(in thousands):

2013% 3,36¢

2014 3,26¢

2015 3,16¢

2016 3,20¢

2017 2,17(

Thereafter 1,65(
Total minimum non-cancelable lease payments, net ~ $ 16,83t

Guarantees, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Agaments

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , the Companyappdximately $1.0 million and $3.0 million , resfieely, in standby letters of credit
with certain vendors with expiration dates throiNgvember 2013 .

The Company has long lead times for inventory pasels and, therefore, must secure factory capaoity its vendors in advance. As of
December 31, 2012 , the Company had approximateB @illion in non-cancelable market-based purclwdsigations, all of which were for
inventory purchases expected to be received in.2013

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangrsiito agreements that require it to indemnifyrderparties against third-party claims.
These may include: agreements with vendors andisoppunder which the Company may indemnify theyaiast claims arising from use of
their products or services; agreements with custsumder which the Company may indemnify them regjailaims arising from their use or
sale of the Company's products; real estate anipregut leases, under which the Company may indgntessors against third-party claims
relating to the use of their property; agreemerits licensees or licensors, under which the Compaay indemnify the licensee or licensor
against claims arising from their use of the Conyfmimtellectual property or the Company's uséhefrtintellectual property; and agreements
with parties to debt arrangements, under whichtbeapany may indemnify them against claims relatmtheir participation in the
transactions.

The nature and terms of these indemnification aliigs vary from contract to contract, and gengrlinaximum obligation is not stated
within the agreements. The Company holds insuranteies that mitigate potential losses arisingrfroertain types of indemnification
obligations. Management does not deem these oidligato be significant to the Company's financiadigion, results of operations or cash
flows and, therefore, no related liabilities weeearded as of December 31, 2012 .

Guarantees, Commitments and Contingencies of Digirued Operation

The Company retained certain warranty obligationsannection with its discontinued Commercial ofieraand remains contingently liable
for certain product warranty obligations which wassumed by buyers of its Commercial business ptduhes to the extent a buyer fails to
fulfill its assumed obligations. Uncertainties éxisth respect to these warranty obligations, dssiypreviously sold to customers approach enc
of-life and settlements are reached with certastamers in connection with the Company's exit fitmdiscontinued Commercial operation.
As of December 31, 2012 , the Company's warraabyility included $0.4 million for estimated futunearranty costs of its discontinued
Commercial operation.

Legal Matters
The Company is party to various legal proceedimggsng from normal course business activities.ddition, the Company's tax filings are
subject to audit by authorities in the jurisdicBomhere it conducts business, which may resulsgessments of additional taxes. Managemen

believes it has adequately provided for obligatitiveg would result from these legal and tax prooegsl Management believes that the ultin
resolution of these matters will not have a matefict on the Company's financial position, résof operations or cash flows.
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(16) SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (unaudited)

The following table summarizes the Company's urtaddjuarterly financial data for 2012 and 2011iifiousands, except per share amounts):

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total

2012:
Net sales $ 51,26: $ 39,58: % 38,05 % 65,02¢ $ 193,92¢
Gross profit 23,90¢ 17,16¢ 18,54 31,42 91,03’
Operating income (loss) 2,82¢ (599 69¢ 7,66( 10,58¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,64 (48¢€) 1,21¢ 7,26 10,64:
Income (loss) from discontinued operation (125) 322 (26%) 6,30¢ 6,241
Net income (loss) 2,52 (164) 951 13,57« 16,88
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0y $ 0.0 % 04/ 0.5t

Diluted 0.0¢ (0.0)) 0.0z 0.44 0.5¢
2011:
Net sales $ 48,301 % 34,72¢ % 37,40: % 59,98t $ 180,41:
Gross profit 22,081 14,54 15,797 26,03 78,45¢
Operating income (loss) 1,771 (2,677) (719 5,217 3,59¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,121 (2,196 281 3,29¢ 2,501
Income (loss) from discontinued operation 48t (1,072) (379 (121 (2,087)
Net income (loss) 1,60¢ (3,269 (92 3,17¢ 1,42(
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.0 $ 0.1y % — 3 011 $ 0.0t

Diluted 0.0t (0.13) — 0.11 0.0t

51




Table of Contents

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIA L REPORTING
Disclosure Controls and Procedur

As of December 31, 2012 , we conducted an evaluatimer the supervision and with the participatbour management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officef,the effectiveness of the design and operatiosuofdisclosure controls and procedures.
term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as @efiim Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the 8msuand Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (“Exchange Act”), means controls and gihecedures of a company that are designed to ettzatrenformation required to be
disclosed by the company in the reports it filesulsmits under the Exchange Act is recorded, peetksummarized and reported, within the
time periods specified in the SEC's rules and fomisclosure controls and procedures include, wittinnitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it fdlesubmits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company's reamag, including its principal executive and prpadifinancial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate, towltimely decisions regarding required disclosiBased on this evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officencluded as of December 31, 2ahat our disclosure controls and procedures wdeztife.

Management's Report On Internal Control Over Finaiat Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and tai@ing adequate internal control over financigloing as such term is defined in

Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. This rulénés internal control over financial reportingaprocess designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company's principal executiffecer and principal financial officer, to provideasonable assurance regarding the reliabilit
of financial reporting and the preparation of fingth statements for external purposes in accordwitteU.S. GAAP. Our internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies andcedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records tha@&sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflecttthasactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company;

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactierreeorded as necessary to permit preparatiomarfidial statements in accordance
with U.S. GAAP, and that receipts and expenditafate Company are being made only in accordante avithorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and

* Provide reasonable assurance regarding preveotibmely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on tlenéial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. In addition, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management's Assessme

Nautilus' management, including our Chief Execu®féicer and Principal Financial Officer, evaluatie effectiveness of our internal cont

over financial reporting based on the criteria legtaed inlnternal Control - Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basethisnevaluation, management concluded that ourriatecontrol over financial reporting
was effective as of December 31, 2012 .

Our independent registered public accounting fiam issued an attestation report on the effectiweoksur internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31, 2012 , which is inetlterein.
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Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reportim

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting that occurred during the thneenths ended December 31, 2012 that hav
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Nautilus, Inc.
Vancouver, Washington

We have audited the internal control over finanéglorting of Nautilus, Inc. and subsidiaries (tBempany”) as of December 31, 2012 ,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission. The Company's management is resporieibfeaintaining effective internal control ovendincial reporting and for its assessr
of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting, included in the accompanying “Maeagnt's Report On Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting.” Our responsibility is to e&ps an opinion on the Company's internal contref éimancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staddof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8d&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etastilg and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeéliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemvigi the company's principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pmrs performing similar functions, and effected by tompany's board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide realasturance regarding the reliability of financ&dorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comglsainternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(th) pertain to the maintenance of records thaktasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetesof the company; (2) provide reasonable asserduat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial stateisiin accordance with generally accepted acomyiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amedtdirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the company's as
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventetbtacted on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenekthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over figgl reporting as of December 31,
2012 , based on the criteria establishebhiarnal Control-Integrated Framewoiiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and foy#s ended December 31, 2012 of the Company, anceport dated March 7, 2013 ,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarstatements.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLI

Portland, Oregon
March 7, 2013

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance
The information required by this item will be setth under the captiortslection of Directors Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repor
Compliance, Executive Officeed Information Concerning the Board of Directoirs our Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meetii
Shareholders to be filed with the SEC by April 3013 (“Proxy Statement”)f the Proxy Statement is not filed with the SECAgril 30, 2013
such information will be included in an amendmenthis Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by April 32013.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item will be setth under the captioBxecutive Compensatiom our Proxy Statement. If the Proxy Statern
is not filed with the SEC by April 30, 2013, suctfidrmation will be included in an amendment to thimual Report on Form 10-K filed by
April 30, 2013.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter
The information required by this item is includawer the captioStock Ownership our Proxy Statement. If the Proxy Statemenisfited
with the SEC by April 30, 2013, such informatiorilvbie included in an amendment to this Annual ReparForm 10-K filed by April 30,
2013.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence
The information required by this item is includewder the captioinformation Concerning the Board of Directdrsour Proxy Statement. If
the Proxy Statement is not filed with the SEC byilAR0, 2013, such information will be includedan amendment to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed by April 30, 2013.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information required by this item is includater the captioAppointment of Registered Independent Public Adoogifrirm for 2012 in

our Proxy Statement. If the Proxy Statement isfited with the SEC by April 30, 2013, such inforrwat will be included in an amendment to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by April 32013.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a)(1) Financial Statements
See the Consolidated Financial Statements in Rdrein 8.
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule

There are no financial statement schedules filgohatsof this Annual Report on Form 10-K, since tbguired information is included in
the consolidated financial statements, includirgribtes thereto, or the circumstances requirinigsimn of such schedules are not presen

(a)(3) Exhibit Index

See the Exhibit Index beginning on page 57 forscdption of the documents that are filed as Exhito this Annual Report on Form X0-
or incorporated herein by reference.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regitthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

NAUTILUS, INC.

Date: March 7, 2013 By: s/ Bruce M. Cazenave
Bruce M. Cazenave

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose individual signature appearswbledémeby authorizes and appoints Bruce M. Cazeaadd inda M. Pearce, and each of
them, with full power of substitution and resuhstiin and full power to act without the other, ésthue and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent
to act in his name, place and stead and to ex@ttie name and on behalf of each person, indiViglaad in each capacity stated below, and
to file any and all amendments to this report, wiirexhibits thereto, and other documents in ceotioe therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents, and each of them, full poweraaritority to do and perform each and
every act and thing, ratifying and confirming &lat said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any ahtbetheir or his substitute or substitutes may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities indicated on M&rck013 .
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Is/

Signature

Bruce M. Cazenave

Bruce M. Cazenave

/sl Linda M. Pearce

Linda M. Pearce

*

M. Carl Johnson, I

*

Ronald P. Badie

*

Richard A. Horn

*

Anne G. Saunders

*

*By:

Marvin G. Siegert

/sl Wayne M. Bolio

Title

Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Ex¢ive

Officer)

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officand Principal

Accounting Officer)

Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 7, 2013

Wayne M. Bolio
Attorney-In-Fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporationcetporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Compa®ghedule 14A, as
filed with the Commission on April 22, 2008.

3.5 Amended and Restated Bylaws - Incorporated by eafsr to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Current ReporEorm 8-K, as
filed with the Commission on April 5, 2005.

3.6 Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of thepgaom- Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1@menpany's
Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed with the Corssion on January 31, 2007.

10.1* Company Stock Option Plan, as amended - Incorpobiataeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company'siRegfion Statement
on Form S-1, as filed with the Commission on Ma3¢ch999.

10.2* Amendment to Company Stock Option Plan - Incorpatdtty reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company's €@uigrReport on
Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 280filed with the Commission on August 10, 2000.

10.3* Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan - Incorpatdig reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company'sr@uirReport on
Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on June 2@)5.

10.4* First Amendment to the Company 2005 Long-Term ltigerPlan - Incorporated by reference to Exhibi2l® the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three momthded September 30, 2006, as filed with the Conmomissn November 9,
2006.

10.5* Form of Employee Incentive Stock Option Agreemardar the Company Stock Option Plan - Incorporateteference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Annual Report on Faf¥K for the year ended December 31, 2004, ad filith the
Commission on March 16, 2005.

10.6* Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement untier€ompany Stock Option Plan - Incorporated byregfee to Exhibit
10.4 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 104KHe year ended December 31, 2004, as filed Wwghommission on
March 16, 2005.

10.7* Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement - Ipayated by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Compa@yisrent Report on
Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on July 2005.

10.8* Form of Non-Employee Director Nonstatutory Stocki®p Agreement - Incorporated by reference to ExHib of the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed ligh Commission on August 19, 2005.

10.9* Form of Performance Unit Agreement - Incorporatgddierence to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's QuigriReport on Form
10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2006ledsvith the Commission on August 9, 2006.

10.10* Summary of Performance Unit Award - Incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quigrieeport on Form
10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 280fied with the Commission on November 9, 2006.

10.11 Trademark License Agreement, dated September 204, 2§ and between Pacific Direct, LLC and the Canyp-
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the @amy's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the thmemths ended
September 30, 2001, as filed with the CommissioiNowember 14, 2001.

10.12 License Agreement, dated April 26, 1999, as amenoetveen the Company and Gary D. Piaget - Incatpdrby reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Annual Report omfr@0-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, ed filith the
Commission on March 15, 2004.

10.13 Supply Agreement dated as of May 2, 2008rayamong Nautilus, Inc., Land America Health aitdeSs Co., Ltd. and

Treuriver Investments Co. Limited - Incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's ForrQLfor the three
months ended March 31, 2008 as filed with the Cossioh on May 12, 2008. [Confidential treatment besn granted with



respect to a portion of this Exhibit]

10.14 Settlement Agreement dated as of May 5, 2008 byaamohg Nautilus, Inc. Land America Health and FEm€o., Ltd.,
Treuriver Investments Co. Limited, Michael C. Bruanad Yang Lin Qing - Incorporated by reference %bibit 10.5 of the
Company's Form 10-Q for the three months ended IM3t¢ 2008 as filed with the Commission on May 2()8.

10.15 Schwinn Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of DereR009 between Nautilus, Inc. and Fit Dragdarhmtional, Inc. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of tlmmpany's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decamli, 2009 as filed

with the Commission on March 8, 2010.
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10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29*

10.30*

10.31

License Agreement dated as of December 29, 20@@&bketNautilus, Inc. and Fit Dragon Internationat. |- Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the Company's ForaK10r the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009led fvith the
Commission on March 8, 2010.

Stairmaster Asset Purchase Agreement dated asceifber 5, 2009 between Nautilus, Inc. and Fit Dndgeernational, Inc. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of tlmmpany's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decam3li, 2009 as filed
with the Commission on March 8, 2010.

Technology Transfer and License Agreement datext Becember 29, 2009 between Nautilus, Inc. andFagon
International, Inc. - Incorporated by referenc&idnibit 10.26 of the Company's Form 10-K for thecél year ended December
31, 2009 as filed with the Commission on March@L.@

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of February018, lZetween Nautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systems, 4thecorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Company's ForaKIfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009led ith the
Commission on March 8, 2010.

Commercial License Agreement dated as of Februra10 between Nautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systdnts,- Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.28 of the Company's FafK for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2G08led with the
Commission on March 8, 2010.

Lease Agreement dated as of February 19, 2010 batiNautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systems, Inc. - ipaoated by reference
to Exhibit 10.29 of the Company's Form 10-K for flseal year ended December 31, 2009 as filed thithCommission on
March 8, 2010.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated M&cB®.2 between Nautilus, Inc. and Bank of the Wéstorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Forii 8 the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009led fwith the Commissio
on April 5, 2012.

Security Agreement dated as of March 8, 2010 betvidzautilus, Inc. and Bank of the West - Incorpodatg reference to
Exhibit 10.31 of the Company's Form 10-K for thectil year ended December 31, 2009 as filed witlCdramission on
March 8, 2010.

Private Label Consumer Credit Card Program Agre¢naated June 15, 2010, by and between the Comgrasth(GE Money
Bank - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1thaf Company's Form 1Q-for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as
with the Commission on August 16, 2010. [Confidaintieatment has been granted with respect totiopaf this Exhibit].

HELPcard Merchant Agreement, dated June 14, 20 tiwe as of June 11, 2010, by and between thafgamy, and Dent-A-
Med, Inc. - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit216f the Company's Form 10-Q for the three mosetided June 30, 2010 as
filed with the Commission on August 16, 2010. [ddaeftial treatment has been granted with respeatgortion of this
Exhibit].

Addendum dated August 20, 2010 to Supply Agreerdatedd May 2, 2008 between the Company, Treurivezdiments
LIMITED, and Land America Health and Fitness Cal.L:tIncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1he&f Company's Form
10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 29filed with the Commission on November 9, 2010.

First Amendment dated November 6, 2010 to Privatieell Consumer Credit Card Program Agreement, dated 15, 2010,
by and between the Company and GE Money Bank.

Merchant Agreement dated December 15, 2010, bettiee@ompany and Hy Cite Corporation [Confidertti@atment has
been granted with respect to a portion of this Bithi

Executive Employment Agreement, datept&aber 21, 2007, between the Company and Wayrizolb.
Offer Letter, dated April 9, 2009, betmethe Company and Ryan A. Neal.

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated March 23, betteen the Company and Monterey Financial Sesyic.-
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of therpany's Form 10-Q for the three months ended Mat¢t2011 as filed with
the Commission on Mayv 6. 2011. [Confidential treainhas been aranted with respect to a portiohisfExhibitl.



10.32

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

Office Lease Agreement dated as of July 25, 204 hrial between Nautilus, Inc. and Columbia Tech &emhtL.C. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany's Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with @ommission on July
29, 2011.

Executive Employment Agreement dated as of May2BQ1, between the Company and Bruce M. Cazenawsorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's FormQLfdr the three months ended June 30, 2011 asviigdthe Commission
on August 11, 2011.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement - Incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Companga#10-Q for the three
months ended June 30, 2011 as filed with the Cosiamison August 11, 2011.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement - Incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Compangst+10-Q for the three
months ended June 30, 2011 as filed with the Cosiamison August 11, 2011.
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10.36*

10.37*

21

23

31.1

31.2

32.1

101

*

Form of Non-Employee Director Nonstatutory Stocki®p Agreement - Incorporated by reference to EixHib.2 of the
Company's Form 10-Q for the three months ended IM3it¢ 2012 as filed with the Commission on May @®1.2

Executive Employment Agreement dated as of Augu2022, between the Company and Linda M. Pearcerporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's FormQLf®»r the three months ended September 30, 2012.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Independent Registered Publioietng Firm.

Certification of Principal Executive Officpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxlé¢yA2002.

Certification of Principal Financial Officpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxl¢yfA2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Setti@50, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dhieaBes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following financial statements from Nautilus¢l's annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscalrye@ded December 31,
2012, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reipgrtanguage): (i) Consolidated Balance SheejsC@nsolidated
Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Statetsof Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensiverm&div) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv) Notes to Codat#d Financial Statements (unaudited), taggedbaksof

text. Information is furnished and not filed, aschit incorporated by reference in any registrastatement or prospectus for
purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the SecuritiesoA@033, is deemed not filed for purposes of secti8 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not sulifetiability under these sections.

Indicates management contract, compensatoryeageat or arrangement, in which the Company's direcir executive officers may

participate.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF NAUTILUS, INC.

Nautilus, Inc., a Washington corporati

Nautilus International Holdings, S.A., a Swiss @aygiion
Nautilus International, S.A., a Swiss corporal

Nautilus Switzerland, S.A., a Swiss corporal

Nautilus International GmbH, a German corpora
Nautilus Fitness UK Ltd., a United Kingdom corpdoat
Nautilus Fitness Canada, Inc., a Canadian corpmor
Nautilus (Shanghai) Fitness Co., Ltd., a Chinesparation

EXHIBIT 21



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statements No. 333-126054, 333-7964 333446936 on Form S-8 of our reports
dated March 7, 2013, relating to the consolidditehcial statements of Nautilus, Inc., and thee&tveness of Nautilus, Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting, appearing in this AnnRalport on Form 10-K of Nautilus, Inc. for the yeaded December 31, 2012 .

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Portland, Oregon
March 7, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Bruce M. Cazenave, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornK16f Nautilus, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@émstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and pro@sdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdotbe designed under my
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to me by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isitg prepared;

Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed
under my supervision, to provide reasonable assarezgarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntad report my conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportittgit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inke$ management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the

March 7, 2013

Date

registrant's internal control over financial repugt

By: /sl Bruce M. Cazenave
Bruce M. Cazenave

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)







EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

[, Linda M. Pearce, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornK16f Nautilus, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@émstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible fo r establishing and maintaidiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and pro@sdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdotbe designed under my
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to me by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isitg prepared;

Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed
under my supervision, to provide reasonable assarezgarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntad report my conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportittgit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inke$ management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the

March 7, 2013

Date

registrant's internal control over financial repugt

By: /sl Linda M. Pearce
Linda M. Pearce

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)







EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, ChapteB 6f Title 18, United States Code)

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 135@&pd#r 63 of Title 18, United States
Code), the undersigned officer of Nautilus, IncWashington corporation (the “Company”), does hgredrtify that:

To my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfar year ended December 31, 2012 (the “Form 10eKthe Company fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and informationtained in the Form 10-K fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the Company.

March 7, 2013 By: /s/ Bruce M. Cazenave
Date Bruce M. Cazenave

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwall be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, ChapteB 6f Title 18, United States Code)

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 135@&pd#r 63 of Title 18, United States
Code), the undersigned officer of Nautilus, IncWashington corporation (the “Company”), does hgredrtify that:

To my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfar year ended December 31, 2012 (the “Form 10eKthe Company fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and informationtained in the Form 10-K fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the Company.

March 7, 2013 By: /s/ Linda M. Pearce
Date Linda M. Pearce

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@uammission or its staff upon request.



